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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

GROUP RESULTS

Turnover of the Group for the current year of 2010/1 | increased slightly
to HK$1,416,250,000 (2009/10: HK$1,310,042,000) and the overall net
profit was HK$ 111,644,000 (2009/10: HK$103,646,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Net profit for the Group increased by about 8%, which was the

combined effect of:—

. Wuxi No.l Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the
“Wuxi Group”) at Wuxi, the PRC, which we have a 49% interest,
recorded significant profits of HK$72,594,000 as compared to
HK$34,237,000 in 2009/10.

2. The reversal of impairment loss of our investment in Qinghai
Changchun Carbon Co., Ltd. at Qinghai, the PRC, which was
disposed of during the current year (this investment was impaired
in 2009/10) as well as reversal of impairment loss on the fixed

assets at our factories in China.

3. The gain on disposals of land and buildings and investment

properties of HK$81,133,000 in 2009/10.

Our garment business in general has been steadily improving after the
financial crisis in 2008. There has been growth in garment sale business
with some of our customers, especially for those high end fashion

houses.

Garment manufacturing business in the PRC as with all other intensive
labour industries there, faced another difficult year. All the adverse
factors like ever rising manufacturing and operation costs, hike in
raw material prices especially for raw cotton, shortage of sewing
workers and the strong Renminbi etc. affected the profit margin of
our manufacturing business. Through reduction of the operating costs,
reorganisation of the whole manufacturing setup and close monitoring of

every tier of operation, the results for the year under review improved.

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRE®|E

Another manufacturing operation that we have — Lavender Garment Ltd.
at Bangladesh had expanded its facility during the year and at the same
time recorded a net profit better than the previous years. Lavender
Garment Ltd. is a shirt factory and at the same time it acts as an agent to
oversee all the production of our subcontracting factories in Bangladesh

and liaise with our customers.

There was a significant return of profits from our investment in Wuxi
No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. at Wuxi, the PRC mainly due to the
escalating raw cotton prices over the entire year that appreciated the
raw cotton we had in stock as well as enabling us to raise yarn selling

prices and increase our profit.

OUTLOOK

The coming year will be a stable and steady one for our garment sale
business. As for our garment manufacturing business, it will continue to
be a year of reformation for our factories in the PRC. All the problems
confronting our garment manufacturing operations there have not
slackened. Our management continues to strive hard to improve the
performance of our operations there. To tackle the shortage of labour
and the ever increasing remuneration there, we have already started
moving part of the manufacturing business further inland into Guangxi
province. To cope with the change of manufacturing pattern in Panyu,
we have started to modify our operation structures like minimising
our already reduced dyeing division. It is hoped that through all these
measures, we could reinforce our manufacturing facilities and increase
our production capacity thus bringing in more revenue for our garment

sale business.

The exceptional good results of our investment in Wuxi this year will
not happen in the coming year since the raw cotton prices have gone

down. This will negatively affect the Group’s overall profit.

APPRECIATION

| would like, on behalf of the Board and shareholders, to express our
appreciation to the Company’s employees for their efforts and loyal

service to the Company during the past year.
By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 201 |

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2011 was
HK$1,416,250,000 compared with HK$1,310,042,000 for the year ended
31 March 2010, and the Group’s profit for the year was HK$1 11,644,000
compared with last year’s profit of HK$103,646,000, an increase of
about 8%.

GARMENT BUSINESS

We operate our textiles and garment business mainly under the names
of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited and Hong Kong Knitters Limited.
Our products include men’s and women’s shirts, trousers, shorts,
polo shirts, t-shirts, jackets and knitted outerwear. The office in Hong
Kong is the headquarters for our whole group where we concentrate
on the roles of garment trading, sourcing, overall control of our own
production facilities in the PRC and Bangladesh as well as to monitoring
the subcontractors in the PRC, India, Bangladesh, Cambodia, Myanmar,
Vietnam and Indonesia. We also have sales offices in the PRC at Panyu,
Dongguan, Hangzhou and Shanghai that take care of our manufacturing

needs and oversee our domestic sales in the regions.

Our two major wholly owned production facilities in the PRC are mainly
located in Panyu. They are Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) Limited
(“EQK”) and Whampoa Garment Mfg. (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“WGM”).
Our setup is a vertical one from knitting, dyeing and finishing of fabrics
to the manufacturing and wholesaling of garments. Both EQK and WGM
are compliant factories manufacturing mainly high end garments. Another
wholly owned factory which is still in its initial stage has been set up in

Guigang, Guangxi in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

2010/11 continued to be a difficult year for our factories in the PRC.
Besides all the adverse factors that confronted our operation like: rising
operational expenses, increase of material and energy costs, shortage
of sewing workers, and the continuous appreciation of Renminbi, raw
cotton prices that went sky high rendered great instability to our
business and eroded our profit margin. To tackle some of these factors,
management decided to move part of our manufacturing facilities further
inland into the PRC’s Guangxi province. A factory at Guigang, Guangxi
has been set up and will be in full production soon. Other measures
like further minimising our dyeing division to cope with the change of
operation pattern in Panyu, streamline our operations and cutting down
our overhead expenses are all underway. Management hopes that with
the new Guigang manufacturing facility running smoothly and all other
measures taking effect, our garment production business will be able
to boost our garment sale business and in a way contributing to the

Group’s profits.

Our shirt factory — Lavender Garment Limited in Bangladesh expanded
its facilities and capacity last year. It recorded a profit that was better
than last year. The factory will further expand its manufacturing facilities

in the coming years to cope with the demand.

OTHER BUSINESS

Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. in which we have a 49%
shareholding is our jointly controlled entity that owns several textiles
related companies in Wuxi, the PRC namely: Wuxi YGM Textile Co.,
Ltd. and Wuxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd.. The core business of
the Wuxi Group is the production of medium range to high end yarns.
The operation recorded a remarkable increase of profits mainly due to
the escalating raw cotton prices that afforded a higher profit margin to
the yarn prices. However we do not expect this favourable result will

continue next year as raw cotton prices have subsided.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED N

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

During the period under review, the Group’s operations continued to be

financed by the internal resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2011, the cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately HK$137,086,000 (2010: HK$184,770,000). As at 31 March
2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any short term borrowings and

long term borrowings.

The Group adopts a prudent policy to hedge the fluctuation of foreign
exchange rates. As most of the Group’s sales, purchases, cash and
bank balances and bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars, Euros, Pound Sterling or Renminbi, the
Group may enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
receivables and payables denominated in the above foreign currencies
against the exchange rate fluctuation when the exposure is significant.
As at 31 March 2011, the Group has foreign exchange contracts hedging
forecast transactions with a net fair value of HK$3,865,000, recognised

as derivative financial liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group, including its subsidiaries but excluding
its associates and jointly controlled entities, employed approximately of
4,500 employees. Remuneration packages are determined by reference
to employees’ performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market.
In addition, the Group provides year end double pay, provident fund

scheme, medical insurance and training to staff.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERES

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of Yangtzekiang Garment Limited
(the “Company”), and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entities (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| March 201 1.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
garment products and textiles, the provision of processing services and
the rental of properties. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in note |3

to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 3| March 2011 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in

the financial statements on pages 29 to 157.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 28(c) to the

financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$111,111,000 (2010:
HK$103,479,000) have been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents (2010: HKI cent) per share
was declared and paid on 21 December 2010. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI0 cents (2010: HK6é

cents) per share in respect of the year ended 3| March 201 1.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in

note |4 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

HK$73,000 (2010: HK$37,000).

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the

financial year is as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F 3

FREEEEZ S FITHN M HRKRM
140

BEBE

FAREEZZEZBFET3008 T (ZF
—ZF 37,0008 7T)

TEEFRETEHRER

REABBRFERNTEZFRHEBEASE
B BEERERRBEINAOT ¢

Percentage of

the Group’s total

EREEARE
Sales Purchases
HE 23
The largest customer BREF 13%
Five largest customers in aggregate EfumEAREFE & 45%
The largest supplier BAHERS 9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AfuEKEERES 27%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.

BES RECHBATREARR (RE
EEMABEAARARAES ZENLE)
EXAFEAMEEBALERE LATER
FeftEm s -

ANDFEIXNEEW
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DIRECTORS

The present Directors of the Company are listed on page 2 to the

annual report.

On 6 May 2010, Mr. Wong Lam resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company. The Board would like to take this
opportunity to thank Mr. Wong Lam for his valuable contributions to the

Company during his tenure of office.

Pursuant to Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Madam Chan Suk Man, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Mr. Leung Hok
Lim and Mr. Lin Keping, will retire from the Board by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“the Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”) and the Company considers

the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who offered themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the
Listing Rules as set out amongst other related party transaction in note
32 to the financial statements, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES . ... EBZRO%\=m ...

(@) As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the @ RZE——F=A=+—H ' F&2A7F
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and BEERFEHMBATHRARATH
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within R{EEE AR (RFE S RAGERG (TF
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance S0 EXVEBZ R E) R - HE
(the “SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company B RESPEERERFIRHIEXV
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV EETR8D B LT AR ESEITE
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are ERGEESA ((ZESH ) 2EE
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), the BHNERATRBIHZ2EZRAE
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed (BIERERBEZEBZSROIREHR
Issuers (“the Model Code”) and which were required to be entered EREEREEZEZRAR) AR
in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO RRRERFEOIFIURTFEZERT
were as follows: MeERRRAEWNT @

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
EREERKISITZEERMER

Personal Family Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Director EEHR AR RIKER ATER HithfEg s
Chan Sui Kau R 3 BR 4,324,696 3,999,354 5,611,230 0}
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk Z= 486,102 8,367,130 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Wing Kee R 7K A 8,589,624 208,356 - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing To BR 7K E 9,762,054 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel B oK 22 6,089,244 250,000 3,293,080 (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBRRE 4,369,816 24,000 - (i) & (ii)
Chan Suk Man 2B 3,355,442 - - (i), (ii) & (iii)
So Ying Woon, Alan B pEIE 12,000 - - -
Leung Hok Lim RER - - - -
Wong Lam (resigned on ER(HU=-ZE—FF
6 May 2010) B NAEME) - - - -
Lin Keping M= F - - - -
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael Gz <3 - - - -

ANDFEIXNEEW
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

(@)

(continued)

Notes:

(0]

(i)

(iif)

Save

48,032,240 shares of the Company were held by Chan Family
Investment Corporation Ltd. (which is owned by Messrs Chan Sui
Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan

Suk Man and other members of the Chan Family) and its subsidiaries.

1,577,388 shares of the Company were held by Hearty Development
Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing Fui, Peter,
Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing To and Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Madam
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and Madam Chan Suk Man and other members
of the Chan Family.

2,383,500 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Man and other members of the
Chan family.

as disclosed above, as at 3| March 2011, none of the

Directors or their associates, had, under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part

XV o
such
share
assoc
SFO)

f the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed to have under
provisions of the SFO, any interests or short positions in the
s, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
iated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

or any interests which are required to be entered into the

register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO

or an

y interests which are required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person who
was, directly or indirectly, interested or had short position in the shares
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more
of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any options in

respect of such capital as at 31 March 2011.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to directors and employees of the Group
and other eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company,
provided that the total number of shares in the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
does not exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, which was 14,024,579 shares.
On |9 September 2006, it was approved in the Annual General Meeting
that the maximum number of options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme was increased to 21,036,868 shares, representing 10% of

the total number of ordinary shares in issue on that day.

No options were granted under the Share Option Scheme during the

year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March
201 1.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions under Chapter |4A of the Listing
Rules are set out amongst other related party transactions in note 32(a)
to the financial statements. In the opinion of the independent non-

executive directors, these transactions were entered into by the Group:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(ii) conducted either on normal commercial terms (which expression
will be applied by reference to transactions of a similar nature
and to be made by similar entities) or where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

independent shareholders of the Company are concerned;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the

transactions; and

(iv) in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where

applicable.

The Directors have received a letter from the auditor of the Company

as required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

There are no other connected transactions which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
I4A of the Listing Rules.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note

25 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix |4
to the Listing Rules, the Company has set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision on the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The Committee comprises three

independent non-executive directors.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 159 and 160 of the annual

report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s

issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

By Order of the Board
Chan Sui Kau

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 201 |
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated to
uphold a high corporate governance standard. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for protecting the interests of the Company and maximizing

shareholder value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices comply with all the code
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) except that the non-executive directors of the
Company were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s

articles of association.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategic directions, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance. It also decides on matters relating to annual
and interim results, audited financial statements, notifiable transactions,
appointment and re-appointment of directors, major acquisitions and
disposals, material contracts, risk management, major financings and

borrowings, accounting and dividends policies.

The Board comprises eight executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The independent non-executive directors bring
a diverse range of expertise, skills and experience to provide effective

guidance and an outside perspective to all major decisions of the Group.
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The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record of

the individual Directors is as follows:
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ESENFREBETTEOAER 8E32
HECHEB|IIMT -

Meetings attended/Held

Board Meeting ExgeR HERE BITEERH
Executive Directors HITES

Chan Sui Kau B % 2R 4/4
Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRoKE 4/4
Chan Wing Kee B ok 4 4/4
Chan Wing To R 7K & 4/4
Chan Suk Man SIS 4/4
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel [BR 7k 2% 4/4
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley AR 4/4
So Ying Woon, Alan Bk FE1B 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Leung Hok Lim RER 4/4
Lin Keping M= 4/4
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael ek 4/4

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, each of the
independent non-executive directors has confirmed with the Company
in writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the relevant guidelines. The Company considers that all independent
non-executive directors of the Company are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of
the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Managing
Director’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business activities.
The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure a balance

of power and authority.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee and the full
Board is involved in the appointment of directors. To maintain high
quality of the Board with a balance of skills and experience, the Board
will identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors when
necessary. In evaluating whether an appointee is suitable to act as a
director, the Board will consider the experience, qualification and other
relevant factors. During the year, no nomination of new director has
been considered by the Board.

RELITRAUZEE  EBILFHUTES
EREMEBEES M AARAENRIELB Y
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BE EEBRKREIRRED K9 -

AABAABEBRUREEEE MEETES
EHERZ2RESESE - REFESS
AERREZZMERORER ESE8
ARERVNERERIATHEES &
TEE - ARREALIREEAHERE
BN EXZSEZEARRBALZELR
ERREMEBEEER - AFER  EFEY
BEZRRETEMHES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREABE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee with mandate to oversee particular aspects of the affairs
of the Company. Each of these two Board committees is set up with
written terms of reference. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the

expenses of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-

executive directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung Hok Lim.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system and its execution through the review of the work
undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating financial
information and related disclosure, reviewing connected transactions and
considering the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and

their training programmes and budget.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and the

attendance record is set out below:

it £ SR TG Tl R
EXTSCHIBEREEERMEZRES
UREHEBRARABERRSHE - ZW
BEEESZESRREENREHE &
EEZEERRMARERUBETHRE
RAREERRTESRBYEXER &
REARRZAMN -

BEREEE

ARABERUEREZES  WHEAEEE
BEHE BREESER=ZEBIUFAT
B UTHRBRAEHEERE -

EREEETEREEELA QN RAMBERE
BT B BB AR AT AR AN S HE A% B AT
THIEEHERARAAABEEFEREH
1T AHERBERNKREENE  FHEXE
BRXGREBANRNE R ERBE
BRRAENER BTEERKHESTESN
URETIREZNZIREREHRRER
BRRE-

RAFER  BREESSERMAEE  H
FERREEIWT -

Meetings attended/Held

Audit Committee Meeting EREZEEEER HERBIBITERRY
Leung Hok Lim RER 2/2
Lin Keping MR FE 2/2
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael HE 1R 2/2
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The Audit Committee held meetings to review the financial results,
connected transactions and internal control system for the year ended
31 March 201 1.

During the year, the Board has not taken any view that is different
from that of the Audit Committee nor rejected any recommendation

presented by the Audit Committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Kee, and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Lin Keping and Mr.
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
in overseeing remuneration packages of the directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors. It would also take into account whether the emoluments
offered are appropriate given the duties and performance of the
respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments are

competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting.

The attendance record is set out below:
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Meetings attended/Held

Remuneration Committee Meeting HeZEEER HERE RBTEBRK
Chan Wing Fui, Peter PRk ZE 11
Chan Wing Kee R K A 171
Leung Hok Lim RER 171
Lin Keping M 171
Sze Cho Cheung, Michael ik ER<d 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are
prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and

applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Company
about the financial statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s

Report” on pages 27 to 28.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$1,670,000 (2010: HK$1,644,000), of which a
sum of HK$1,400,000 (2010: HK$1,410,000) was paid or payable to the
Group’s principal auditors, KPMG.

The fees paid to KPMG for services rendered are set out as below:

ESRERBOEBMBBRR2ER

ESREEELAERUBRRZERTHE
VTHRRZEVBRRZERITENEER
BERARBERASHERNRE -

AATZHBREMEBARERNTERE
ZHBEESTHRE2EEZ2BEZ[BIZKE
BEREE] o

% B A&

AEBBREEEZIEM L 2 ZEAE
B & 4 %8 51,670,000 T (ZE—FF :
1,644,0007% 7T) » H 11,400,000/ T (=&
—ZF 1,410,000 5t) B X FHEX S
FAEBCEIERYMESTHETMER
Ff ©

HRESREFTMEBAAREIRBEMX
F2EBRWT :

2011 2010

e e =

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Statutory audit EEBER 1,400 1,410
Non-audit services FEXRIE 149 211
Total Hzg 1,549 1,621
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code

throughout the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate and
sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee and
an external firm of qualified accountants (the “Internal Auditors”) to
provide internal audit services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness of
these systems at least annually, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions. The process used in reviewing the effectiveness of these
internal control systems includes discussion with management on risk
areas identified by management. The purpose of the Company’s internal
control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks
of failure in operational systems so that the Company’s objectives can be

achieved.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas
of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing

system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

DIRECTORS

Chan Sui Kau, GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 86, Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established the
Company in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of the Company and
the Honorary Chairman of YGM Trading Ltd. Having been a Justices of
the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in
2002 and six years later in 2008 he was awarded the Grand Bauhinia
Medal. Dr. Chan used to serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee until he reached
the retirement age. Dr. Chan is also an Honorary Citizen of Dongguan,

Foshan, Guangzhou and Wuxi (Jiangsu).

Dr. Chan received an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001;
an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from City University
of Hong Kong in 2007 and in the same year an Honorary University
Fellowship from The University of Hong Kong. Then in 2008 Dr. Chan
received another two honorary university conferments: one was an
Honorary University Fellowship from Hong Kong Baptist University and
the other one was an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Social Sciences from

The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology.

Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of the Clothing Industry Training
Authority (1986); former Chairman of the Textile Council of Hong Kong
(1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former President
of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-1988) and
currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of Hong Kong
Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association since 1980 and
former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong Kong (1971-1987) as
well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board (1985-1995).
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Chan Wing Fui, Peter, MA

Aged 65, Mr. Chan received a Master’s degree in Administrative
Science from Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined the Group in
the same year. He was appointed as Director and Managing Director
of the Company in 1971 and 1980 respectively and Vice Chairman of
the board of directors of the Group and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He
was appointed the Chairman of the board of directors of YGM Trading
Limited since May 2010. Mr Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Wing Kee, GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 64, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering
in 1970. He joined the Group in 1970 as Production Manager and later
became Sales Manager. He was appointed Director in 1977 and Managing
Director in 1987. He is also a Director of YGM Trading Limited;
Independent Non-executive Director of China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many textile
negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He
is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th and | Ith of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th & 9th
National People’s Congress of China; Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; Ex-
member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee Member
of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the brother of Mr.
Chan Wing To and Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Chan Wing To, PhD

Aged 60, Mr. Chan joined YGM Singapore in 1978. He was appointed
Director of the Group in 1983 and YGM Trading Ltd in 1987. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee and Ms. Chan Suk Man.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

Chan Suk Man, Msc
Aged 63, Ms.
University of Windsor, Canada in 1973 and Case Western Reserve
University USA in 1975. Madam Chan joined the Group in 1976 and was
appointed as Director in 1993. She is the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Kee
and Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan received Master of Science Degrees from the

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, FCA

Aged 63, Mr. Chan received a Bachelor’s degree from University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. He was the Company Secretary of the Group
from 1974 to 1988 and has been a Director since 1977. Mr. Chan was
appointed as the Managing Director of YGM Trading Limited from 1987
to 2006 and the Chief Executive Officer of YGM Trading Limited from
2006 to 2010. He was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the board
of directors of YGM Trading Limited since May 2010. He has been
appointed as the Chairman of Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited since
2003 and also acts as the Chief Executive Officer since March 2010. He
is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui,
Peter and Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley, Jp

Madam Chan, is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the YGM Trading Limited. She joined the Group in 1973 and was
appointed as the Director of the Group in 1983. Madam Chan has
extensive experience of management in the garment retail and wholesale
business. She is a Member of the Textiles Advisory Board of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, a Member of the Hong Kong-France
Business Partnership Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, Vice President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong, Chairman of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council,
a Member of the CreativeSmart Initiative (Design) Assessment Panel, a
Member of the Board of Directors of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a
Committee Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Vice President of the
Guangdong Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and a
Member of The Council of City University of Hong Kong. She received
a Bachelor’s degree from Nottingham Trent University, the United
Kingdom in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 60, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui
Kau and the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun,

Samuel.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

So Ying Woon, Alan

Aged 61, Mr. So received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1974. Mr. So joined the Group in 1974 and
was promoted to the position of Sales Manager in 1976. He has been
the General Manager since 1993. Mr. So was appointed as Executive

Director of the Company in 2005.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 76. Mr. Leung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1993. He is the founder and senior
partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers. Mr. Leung is a non-
executive director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies, namely YGM Trading Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited,
Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited, S E A Holdings Limited and

High Fashion International Limited.

Lin Keping

Aged 72, Mr. Lin was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications in 1963. He
is a member of the Eighth National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and an executive member of the
Eighth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in
postal and telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications and other organisations for years, and was an
executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp. Ltd. He is also an

Independent Non-executive Director of YGM Trading Limited.

Sze Cho Cheung, Michael, GBS, CBE, ISO, JP

Aged 66, Mr. Sze was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2010. He was a former Executive
Director of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, a position
he held for eight years prior to his retirement on | May 2004. Before
that, he worked for 25 years in various capacities in the Hong Kong
Government. He is also an Independent Non-executive Directors of
Swire Pacific Limited and YGM Trading Limited. Mr. Sze resigned as
a non-executive director of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. in June 2010 and

currently acts as a consultant to the board of Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT
EEREEBAE

MANAGEMENT

Lau Shing Choy

Aged 63, Mr. Lau received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1969, and a Doctor of Philosophy Degree
from Case Western Reserve University, USA in 1978. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in 1978 to develop the China business. He is the Director of

Hong Kong Knitters Limited. He is the husband of Ms. Chan Suk Man.

Leung Ming Wai, Alan

Aged 53, Mr. Leung is the General Manager of Sales Department and
obtained the diploma in Management Studies at Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and Master Degree in Business Administration at University of

Macau. He joined the Company as Sales Manager in 1986.

Chui Wai Ha, Catherine, MBA

Aged 49, Ms. Chui is the General Sales Manager. Ms. Chui joined the
Group in 1994, and has over 20 years' managerial experience in fashion
business. She was awarded Master of Business Administration (Fashion

Business) by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2004.

Hui Sau Ling

Aged 45, Ms. Hui was appointed as Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Company in 2000. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She is

responsible for accounting and company secretarial matters.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHE RS

cblac

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 29 to 157, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheets as at 3|1 March 2011, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B %A RS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=t+—HLLFE LETH)

ANNUAL REPORT
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2011 2010
—g--% -—T-TH
Note $’000 $°000
g3 Fr Fr
Turnover BXE 3&13 1,416,250 1,310,042
Cost of sales HE R A (1,197,870) (1,096,120)
Gross profit EF 218,380 213,922
Other revenue HAu g A 6,336 4,653
Other net (loss)/income Hith (5518) WA 58 4 (2,187) 11,115
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHR (102,975) (101,954)
Administrative expenses THEAR (75,965) (84,041)
Other operating expenses Hih & & A (17,368) (22,992)
Profit from operations KEEA 26,221 20,703
Finance costs & AR 5(a) (5,695) (5,634)
Share of profits less losses of FE R EEE D BRI E 8
associates 18(b) 484 1,306
Share of profits less losses of e g DR EFREE
jointly controlled entities 19 72,594 34,237
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries o B S B U i R B 17(c) 1,808 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE QRS 18(c) 293 -
Impairment losses on interest in B nRERRER
associate and dividend receivable BENRREZRERE
from associate reversed/(recognised) BE (R 18(d) 7,914 (7,914)
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE
reversed/(recognised) #BE (FER) 14(f) 5,498 (21,014)
Gain on disposals of land and HETHREF
buildings and investment properties REEMERE 6 - 81,133
Net valuation gains on investment REMEEE WS FHE
properties 14(a) 20,298 20,915
Profit before taxation R i A & R 5 129,415 123,732
Income tax Frig® 7(a) (17,771) (20,086)
Profit for the year REEBF 111,644 103,646

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
meEER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——F=A=+—RLLFE LET)

2011 2010
—g—-F —T-T%F
Note $°000 $°000
Hra Fr TR
Attributable to: ERERN
Equity shareholders of the Company ARATRRERFEA 10 (EEREN 103,479
Non-controlling interests FERBRER 533 167
Profit for the year REEBF 111,644 103,646
Earnings per share EREF
Basic and diluted BEARAREE 12 $0.53 $0.49
The notes on pages 39 to 157 form part of these financial statements. FIBEZEISTENMEB AR ERRK 22—

e

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company EBAEARARREZE ANREFBE LK
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 28(b). 5528(b) °

ANTEAIRESW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e ZmElaER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=t+—HLLFE LETH)

2011 2010
—2—-% —T-TF
Note $’000 $°000
HaE Fr Fr
Profit for the year REERF 111,644 103,646
Other comprehensive income AEEHMREKE
for the year (after (B RER)
reclassification adjustments) I
Exchange differences: EHER:
— translation of financial statements - REFBRINELA
of subsidiaries outside MR RMEL
Hong Kong ZENELE 5,332 413
— share of associates’ and jointly —-EEBHELARREE
controlled entities” exchange NAEE N EE
reserves 24,698 1,694
— transfer of accumulated exchange - EEREZEEREE
differences to profit or loss on Bt B 2 5] R B
disposals of subsidiaries EEREA (506) -
— transfer of accumulated exchange —BERESE
differences to profit or loss A E B E AR R
on disposal of an associate EHEZFEER (875) -
28,649 2,107
Available-for-sale securities: AHERS
net movement in the investment RESEMFEED T
revaluation reserve (365) 101
Cash flow hedges: RemBHF
net movement in the hedging reserve i EEEE TR (3,016) -
25,268 2,208
Total comprehensive income AFEEXERRERE
for the year 136,912 105,854
&
Attributable to: FER B iL
Equity shareholders of the Company ERATREFEA 136,462 105,687 |
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 450 167 &K
Total comprehensive income AFEETERRATE g
for the year 136,912 105,854 /A\
W

FIEZISTENNEB AT KERE 2 — I
3

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED 31

The notes on pages 39 to 157 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERMEXR

FEFR®

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-_E——F=A=+—8 (X&)

2011 2010
———% —z-%F
Note $7000 $7000 $°000 $°000
HaE Fr Fr Fr Fr
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 14(a)
Investment properties REWE 105,056 83,711
Other property, plant and Htu% - BE
equipment &S 101,278 104,529
Interest in leasehold land BIEREHEZ
held for own-use under BABELH
operating lease 1,768 1,747
208,102 189,987
Intangible assets B EE 15 1,569 1,569
Goodwill meE 16 - -
Interests in associates BE QTR 18 203 -
Interests in jointly EELNAER
controlled entities 19 610,400 513,133
Prepayment for fixed assets EE&EERMNTR 3,273 -
Other financial assets HihesmEE 20 7,854 5,820
Deferred tax assets BEFEHERE 26(b) 17,974 17,301
849,375 727,810
Current assets RBEE
Inventories rE 21 140,153 90,416
Trade and other receivables FE UK BR R R H At FE U FK 22 236,315 197,939
Current tax recoverable A EARERIE 26(a) 2,447 2,311
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEEY 23 137,086 184,770
516,001 475,436

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERMEXR

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-B——F=A=+—H (&)

2011 2010
—E——f —E-=f
Note $’000 $’000 $°000 $°000
Mt Fr Fr FT F
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FE < BR 3% % EL At FE A 3K 24 205,481 164,821
Current tax payable FEAST A BB 1R 26(a) 11,274 17,131
216,755 181,952
Net current assets RBEEFEE 299,246 293,484
Total assets less current EERERRBAE
liabilities 1,148,621 1,021,294
Non-current liabilities kREBEME
Provision for long service RERES
payments EE 27 27,818 24,754
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFMEHAE 26(b) 30,968 26,788
58,786 51,542
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,089,835 969,752
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRE
Share capital (&N 28(c) 105,184 105,184
Reserves e 982,974 863,341
Total equity attributable to EEERAQARRKRE
equity shareholders BEAEDAR
of the Company 1,088,158 968,525
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 1,677 1,227
TOTAL EQUITY B 1,089,835 969,752

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June EEEERE——FA~AZ-TN\BR&E

2011. K@M EHIRE o

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee PR B 2R B K 1

Chairman Managing Director EE -y Fosid

The notes on pages 39 to |57 form part of these financial statements. FIWEHZISTENMEB ARG HRK 2 — B
i
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BALANCE SHEET

EERER

FEFR®

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-B——F=A=+—8 (WETH

2011 2010
e —g-%&
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
K Frr For Fr Fr
Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 14(b)
Investment properties REME 131,181 106,970
Other property, plant Hth% - BE
and equipment &S 31,138 26,578
162,319 133,548
Intangible assets B EE 15 1,569 1,569
Interests in subsidiaries P ERNGIE £ 17 109,918 91,884
Interests in jointly controlled EENEIER
entities 19 230,818 230,818
Other financial assets HthemMEE 20 7,854 5,820
512,478 463,639
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =FE 21 36,531 23,528
Trade and other receivables FE U BR TR % EL i FE LR X 22 278,241 211,797
Current tax recoverable Al AR IR 26(a) 1,840 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 23 44911 87,179
361,523 322,504
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables AR REMERAR 24 98,697 76,223
Current tax payable A AEAT R 26(a) - 16,693
98,697 92,916
Net current assets RBEEFE 262,826 229,588
Total assets less BEEHABER
current liabilities RBEE 775,304 693,227

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED



BALANCE SHEET
BEEREXR

At 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-TE——F=A=+—8 (X&)

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F 3

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Note $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
M I FT Fr Fr
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Provision for long service RER®ES
payments i 27 2,050 2,689
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREHAaE 26(b) 25,311 21,124
27,361 23,813
NET ASSETS EERE 747,943 669,414
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E 28(a)
Share capital [N 105,184 105,184
Reserves Ee 642,759 564,230
TOTAL EQUITY FERBE 747,943 669,414

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June

2011.

Chan Sui Kau Chan Wing Kee

Chairman Managing Director

The notes on pages 39 to 157 form part of these financial statements.

ESEER=E-——FXRAZ+NBRE
REREEMmEIRE -

BRERER
4

FIEZISTENHEBARTHHREK = —IF

3 o

R K AR

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

ANDFEIXNEEW

35



ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDEER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE WETH)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ERERALARRRAL
Land and
Capital Goodwill  Investment buildings Non-
Share Share  redemption  Exchange arisingon revaluation  revaluation Hedging Other Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve ~ consolidation reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
B SRRAR RE  1HRET FEBER
Bx  ROEE BEEE  EXRE ELoER EGRE  EREE  HRER  HeBE  REM &8 BE REEE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Kt i i 123 23 i i 123 i 123 i i i
(Note28(c)) ~ (Note28(d)(i)  (NoteD8d)())  (Note28(d)(i) (Note28(d)i)) ~ (Note28(d)(i)) ~ (Note28{d)(y)) ~(Note28(d)()
) WER) MER0 M) ) [Ema) W) HER)
Balance at | April 2009 R-BRAEBA-B2EH 105,184 102753 4l 999 (42,174) 4 20309 - 136 609,799 883,559 1,060 834619
Changes in equity for EREERD:
the year:
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - - - 103479 103479 167 103,646
Other comprehensive income £t 2 Al 1) - - - 2,107 - 101 - - - - 2,008 - 2,008
Total comprehensive income ~~ 2EHHEE - - - 2007 - 101 - - - 103479 105,687 167 105,854
Dividends approved in respect ~ AHAHEBR L-FE
of the previous year HRE 28(b) i) - - - - (18933) (18933) - (18933)
Disposal of investment HENFERATAR
properties previously BroRENE
transferred from land
and buildings - - - (3820) 3820 - - -
Reversal of deferred tax on HENGERALRR
disposal of investment BTz RENEREY
properties previously ZERfERER
transferred from land
and buildings 26(b)() - - - 316 - 318 - 318
Dividends declred inrespect ~ AFEBERRE
of the current year (b)) - - - - (1104 (2,104) - (1104)
Balance at 3| March 2010 H=§-RE=A=1-8R
and | April 2010 ZE-BEMA-B2ER 82,036 (2174) 143 16,805 696,061 968,525 17 99,751
Changes in equity for FRRERE:
the year:
Profic or the year REEET - - - - i [IAIE 53 111644
Other comprehensive income {82 F & 11a) 8731 - (365) - - 25351 ®3) 25,268
Total comprehensive income 2 AN EEE 8732 - (365) - 1, 136462 40 136912
Dividends approved in respect ~ AEAHEBR L-FE
of the previous year HRE 28(b)(i) - - - - (12622) (12622) - (12.622)
Dividends declred in respect ~ AEEBERRE
of the current year 28(0)() - - - - (4.207) (4.207) - (4.207)
Balance at 31 March 011~ HZF--%2f=t1-R
&8 105,184 102,753 481 110,768 (42,174) (222) 16,805 (3,016) 1,36 790,343 1,088,158 1,677 1,089,835

The notes on pages 39 to |57 form part of these financial statements.

FIEZISTENMEB AR KRE 2 — 3
2 o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T——F=A=+—HILFE LETH)
2011 2010
—g--% -—T-TH
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr TG
Operating activities KRETH
Cash (used in)/generated from KEER (A
operations FiERe 23(b) (32,812) 61,644
Tax paid 2B IE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid -EfNEBFEHR (4,615) (11,347)
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong - B EBUNBIE (14,559) (319)
Net cash (used in)/generated from E&EE (FTA), FAEH
operating activities ReFEHE (51,986) 49,978
Investing activities REZEH
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets §& B EE & EJ R 9,772) (3,534)
Proceeds from disposals of land and HETHREFR
buildings and investment properties REVEFTENRIE - 120,000
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HERER#ER
machinery and other fixed assets HihEEEERMBNE 1,429 385
Payment for construction in progress ERIRENAR - (621)
Payment for the purchase of other BEHMERMEENR
financial assets (4,116) -
Net outflow of cash and cash HEKB QR #ER
equivalents in respect of the RERBAEZEEY
disposal of interest in a subsidiary TR 17(c) (677) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate  H & & A 7 FriS K IE 18(d) 5,941 -
Interest received S &IPS 861 1,041
Dividend received from an associate EWHE AT ZRE 917 1,549
Dividends received from unlisted BWFELETREZRS ZKRE
equity securities 301 422
Dividends received from a jointly EREERATZRE
controlled entity 28,772 - E
Receipt of loans receivable I [ FE U & X 667 821 L
Decrease in pledged deposits KR F TR 2 - 9,070 %
Z 3
Net cash generated from RETHREH A
investing activities BREeFE 24,323 129,133 R
/A\
W
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
mERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 —F=A=+—RLLFE (L&)

2011 2010
—g-——-5% c—z-TH
Note $°000 $°000
g3 Fr T
Financing activities A& SEE
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER (35,000) (124,420)
Proceeds from new bank loans HIBRITERPAS A 35,000 40,000
Interest paid 2FE (5,442) (5,634)
Dividends paid 2R E (16,829) (21,037)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEZBMANRESFH (22,271) (111,091)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and &R RS ZEY
cash equivalents CR2) /g mgsE (49,934) 68,020
Cash and cash equivalents at the REMZzREeRELE
beginning of the year =7 184,770 116,153
Effect of foreign exchange rates SIEHBBEIHE
changes 2,250 597
Cash and cash equivalents at the REAZBREREESE
end of the year BY 23(a) 137,086 184,770
The notes on pages 39 to 157 form part of these financial statements. HBI9EZISTENRESEB A BRET 2 — 3

e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF % ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=t+—HLLFE LETH)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out

below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected

in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s

interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/11 FEFH

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

O)

(continued)
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as set

out in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 33.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights

that presently are exercisable are taken into account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 —F=A=t+—RILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions, and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and

the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/11 FEFH

BF 5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary

is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or the Company
and other parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and one or more
of the other parties share joint control over the economic

activity of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 —F=A=t+—RILFE (L&)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes I(e) and (k)). Any
acquisition date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of loss exceeds its interest in
the associate or the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in

the associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they

are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/11 FEFH

BF 5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(d) Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

(e)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
I(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of

an investment in an associate (see note |(d)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note |(k)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s

previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and

liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1 (K))-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 7% ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(e) Goodwill (continued)

®

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the

calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as

follows:

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses

(see note [(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at

cost less impairment losses (see note |(k)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale equity
securities. At each balance sheet date, the fair value is
remeasured with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the investment revaluation reserve. When these
investments are derecognised or impaired (see note |(k)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they

expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF %5 ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement of
the derivative financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion of any

gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to be
included in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the

non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss (such as

when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same period or
periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=+—HLLFE LETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Cash flow hedges (continued)

(h)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated

or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the

hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is

still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that

point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it

is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the

hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the

cumulative unrealised gain or loss reclassified from equity to

profit or loss immediately.

Fixed assets

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note [(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed and developed for future use as investment

properties.

Investment properties are stated at fair value unless
they are still in the course of construction at the
balance sheet date and their fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal
of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted

for as described in note I(t)(iii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for
as if it were held under a finance lease, and the same
accounting policies are applied to other investment

properties leased under finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(h) Fixed assets (continued)

(i)

Other property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note |(k)):

- freehold land;

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an

operating lease (see note |(j)(i));

- buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating

leases (see note 1(j)(i)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

In preparing these financial statements, advantage has
been taken of the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of
HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment, with the effect
that land and buildings which have been revalued in prior
years have not been revalued at the balance sheet date.
Such properties are stated at their carrying value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and will

not be revalued in future years.

Upon disposal of land and buildings which were revalued
in prior years, the attributable revaluation surplus
is transferred from the land and building revaluation

reserve to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESHHEK(E

(h) Fixed assets (continued) (h) BEEE(E)

(ii)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated;

—  Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line

basis over the remaining term of the lease;

(i)
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note I(k)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the period

in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

assets’ estimated useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue
to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out

above.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets (continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note |(h)(i)); and

—  land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building
is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the

Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(j) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note I(h)).

(k) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries: see note |(k)(ii)) and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of

impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities (including those
recognised using the equity method (see
note 1(d)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with note |(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note | (k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities

carried at cost are not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

For trade and other current receivables carried
at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset where the effect of

discounting is material.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale equity securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets

is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.

- property, plant and equipment;

= pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as

being held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets; and

—  goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES . FESFHBER#E
....... (contipucd M le W Cray Mo I o ol Ry el o NP LN N S R M R
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) (k) EEREHE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) BAtE&EEHE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses = WEEEEE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an BREEIZEE  WE
impairment loss is reversed if there has been AUEETWREZHEN
a favourable change in the estimates used to fAETEEB R EL
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment FEEEEREEER
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. |- BmEZREEBET
2EE -
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to FiT 135 (2] A9 8 B AR5 48 LA R
the asset’s carrying amount that would have RREEFEHRARME
been determined had no impairment loss been EEMEEENEER
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment HLERR - FAEEN
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in BEBEEEIEDN
which the reversals are recognised. FERATTABHER -
(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (i) PRI B HREREE
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on ERBBERGBRATE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group S EmRABRE  NEBAE
is required to prepare an interim financial report in HMEB BT ERIE345E -
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, [HE B BRE | 2 IRERE
in respect of the first six months of the financial year. RV REEAEANEANT
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies BB RIS o AR ERHAR
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal AEBEERRTBFEERLE
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see B FfT FE R /9 AR [ 0RELRI A ~
notes | (k)(i) and (ii)). BRARBERR (SEMTE

I (k) (i) R (ii)) °
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YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED 59



ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F

ANBEIXNEHW

60

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Q)

U

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment (continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=+—HLLFE LETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

P)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter are stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(k)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note I(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within

three months of maturity at acquisition.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESHTHK(E
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(q9) Employee benefits

(q) EEEF

() Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHIESEFIREE R
contribution retirement plans Rt 2/ E 7
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions e FHRESE BEFESF
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of B~ BEEH TR IRET B H X
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which REBEFESEBERNEA
the associated services are rendered by employees. HEEERSEHBRENF
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect EREs - MELEXZ A4
would be material, these amounts are stated at their EFE BEEE L Bl
present values. REKZERIEAR -

(i) Long service payments (i) RERHBZ
The Group’s net obligations in respect of long service rEBFERPBRBEER
payments are the amounts of future benefits that FHEERBEEBRFEAR
employees have earned in return for their services in HFE ([ E) HEEE LB
the current and prior periods, calculated in accordance EERAHERBEHBR
with the relevant laws in Hong Kong and The People’s 1 BR 75 AT BRER 2 R 2R $@ Al &
Republic of China (“the PRC”). 5o

(iii)  Share-based payments (i) BRI

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=+—HLLFE LETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(q9) Employee benefits (continued)
(i)~ Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is

released directly to retained profits).

(iv)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan

which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(r) Income tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be

utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=+—HLLFE LETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related

dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESHTHK(E

(r) FrE% (&)

(r) Income tax (continued)

ANERIREET

66

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income. Where the guarantee is issued by the
Company in respect of the banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries, the asset identified is a form of
capital contribution, i.e. an addition to the cost of the

investment in the subsidiary.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note I(s)(iii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Company or the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Company or the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially

recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the
fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial
recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities
are recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate, and the amount that would be determined
in accordance with note I(s)(iii). Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at
the date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with

note |(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. EESHTHEK(E

(t) WARR

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

WA ZEBHERREZ DT
BEE WARELKERET
BEERARNEE  UREEHTE
#FHEW AR A (WNE ) B
RIETHI R EEREAER

(i)  Sale of goods () Em#HE
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the KAEERZERTP S
customers’ premises or when goods are shipped on ERCHER MAEFE
board which are taken to be the point in time when W& m & At 48 B8 69 @ B &
the customer has accepted the goods and the related E3RAFHER - WA T BIEE
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value ERREMEES e
added or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any REMEZZHTN -
trade discounts.
(i) Processing service income (i) 01T AR M A
Processing service income is recognised when the B0 T AR A% WA TE 1R A4 4B BE AR
relevant services are rendered. BEFERABWA -
(iii)  Property rental income (iii) YEHEELRA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is REBPEZEWBESBAL
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over HEHRENSHBER - KU
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an LHEEERAER BUE
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of HtBEEREFER i A
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. BEEEMEENKEER A
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss BRI o REHERREMI R
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments B BERISTERRPRE
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income REWHEE FIRARENA
in the accounting period in which they are earned. RED - EHEEHESE
MWETHERERBEA -
(iv) Dividends (iv) KE
— Dividend income from unlisted investments is - FLEmBREZREKWA
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive ERRBER S 2 EF

payment is established.

WA A BRFERT -

- Dividend income from listed investments is - LWREZRBEWAE
recognised when the share price of the investment EBERERHD ZERR

goes ex-dividend.

B AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/11 FEFH

BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(t)

(w)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(v)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.

(vi)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the balance sheet
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced

depreciation expense.

(vi)  Management fee income and commission income
Management fee income and commission income are

recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-—T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(v)

()

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after | January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before | January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of

the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or

loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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TESTBER (&

(u) SNEEBRE (H)

()

BHER EERERBARS
ANERFERBE -BEAR
REE(BE-22RF-A-
HRUBRBAZBIEBERSE
RERFEE2BHE) UEER
MERFHE EXREZRAUDFRN
HitzmBE R BFARERANZ
ELiREEARR R _ZTTLF
—A—BERUAIBAZBIER
EGRERESHMEEZEHE U
EBAZBIEEE HWERE
A

HEBNEKR  EHERER
BEWER  AREBIEKCHE
BERNEINELZR 2 25HEH
BEHREEERNA -

BEKA

EERFEWRRE B2RILEMS
EHERKBEIUIUKRARER
BRFEENEENEERAF I
FREEEZBDEAE - HfE
MEAGERENHREAIE

BREEREERSA—BI NG
ERFAEEEEERS - BEXK
FEERBEERARERBR
HEMMSANERTHEETHED
B EARL EESEREER
ARERBREEMLANBE R
BOEBITEDIL RTERE 5
ERAEEEFERFILERL -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF % ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint

control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture

in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control

or significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to
in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity

that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE_Z——F=RA=+—RILFE (LB

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the

Group’s financial statements:

- HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations

- Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations — plan to sell the controlling interest in a

subsidiary

- Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition

and measurement — eligible hedged items

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F 3
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2. BitBE2H
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B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF % ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

- HK(IFRIC) 17, Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

The Group has not applied any new standard or Interpretation that

is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 27 has affected
the accounting for the Group’s disposal of part of its interest
in Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Limited (“Top Yield”) in the
current year. The change in policy has resulted in recognition of
a gain of $2,212,000 relating to the re-measurement of the equity
interest in Top Yield retained by the Group as an associate at fair

value following the Group’s loss of control thereof.

The amendment to HKAS 39 has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the amendment’s conclusion was
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group. The other
developments resulted in changes in accounting policy but none of
these changes in policy have a material impact on the current or

comparative periods, for the following reasons:

—  The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) 17 have not yet had a material effect
on the Group’s financial statements as these changes will first
be effective as and when the Group enters into a relevant
transaction (for example, a business combination or a non-
cash distribution) and there is no requirement to restate the

amounts recorded in respect of previous such transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS 27
(in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling interests
(previously known as “minority interests”) in excess of their
equity interest) have had no material impact as there is no
requirement to restate amounts recorded in previous periods
and no such deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current

period.

The amendment introduced by the Improvements to HKFRSs
(2009) omnibus standard in respect of HKAS 17, Leases,
resulted in a change of classification of leasehold land
interests located in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“the HKSAR”). This had no impact to the Group
as the fair values of the Group’s leasehold interest in land
and buildings situated in the HKSAR cannot be measured
separately at the inception of the lease and the building is not
clearly held under an operating lease. Accordingly, the land
and buildings have already been accounted for as finance lease

prior to the introduction of amendments to HKAS 17.

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), any
business combination acquired on or after | April 2010 will
be recognised in accordance with the new requirements and
detailed guidance contained in HKFRS 3 (revised 2008). These

include the following changes in accounting policies:

ERRREH (&)

(BEMBEREER) EIHF 218
A (EERAB N B ENIELR
BEE) R(EBETTER) 27
BB (EEEERBRRER
(UARBABIPDERFRER ] BB
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ERBEEESEBBER -

(BBMBREER) 26 (=
ZENF)MEEB(E B
ZRDEI7TR/HE/NEE 2B
R BHAUREBEIITHE
ZHETHERNSE AAE
BEUREBRRTHREZ LR
BF2HEEEN LA FEEEE
REEMKBOBE - URE
HEFAUFRESLERAESH
HEITHASEETESZE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection
with a business combination, such as finder’s fees, legal
fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and
consulting fees, will be expensed as incurred, whereas
previously they were accounted for as part of the cost
of the business combination and therefore impacted the

amount of goodwill recognised.

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree immediately
prior to obtaining control, these interests will be
treated as if disposed of and re-acquired at fair value
on the date of obtaining control. Previously, the step-
up approach would have been applied, whereby goodwill
was computed as if accumulated at each stage of the

acquisition.

Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in
the measurement of that contingent consideration
unrelated to facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date will be recognised in profit or loss,
whereas previously these changes were recognised as an
adjustment to the cost of the business combination and

therefore impacted the amount of goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
temporary deductible differences and these fail to meet
the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets at the
date of acquisition, then any subsequent recognition of
these assets will be recognised in profit or loss, rather

than as an adjustment to goodwill as was previously the

policy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In addition to the Group’s existing policy of measuring
the non-controlling interests (previously known as
the “minority interests”) in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future the Group
may elect, on a transaction by transaction basis, to

measure the non-controlling interest at fair value.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 (revised

2008), these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively

to any business combinations in the current or future periods. The

new policy in respect of recognition in the movement of deferred

tax assets will also be applied prospectively to accumulated tax

losses and other temporary deductible differences acquired in

previous business combinations. No adjustments have been made

to the carrying values of assets and liabilities that arose from

business combinations whose acquisition dates preceded the

application of this revised standard.

—  As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended 2008), the

following changes in policies will be applied as from | April

2010:

If the Group acquires an additional interest in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with equity shareholders
(the non-controlling interests) in their capacity as
owners and therefore no goodwill will be recognised
as a result of such transactions. Similarly, if the Group
disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but still
retains control, this transaction will also be accounted
for as a transaction with equity shareholders in their
capacity as owners and therefore no profit or loss will
be recognised as a result of such transactions. Previously
the Group treated such transactions as step-up

transactions and partial disposals, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with any remaining
interest retained by the Group being recognised at
fair value as if re-acquired. In addition, as a result of
the adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 5, if at the
balance sheet date the Group has the intention to
dispose of a controlling interest in a subsidiary, the
entire interest in that subsidiary will be classified as
held for sale (assuming that the held for sale criteria
in HKFRS 5 are met) irrespective of the extent to
which the Group will retain an interest. Previously such

transactions were treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27,

these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively

to transactions in current or future periods and therefore

previous periods have not been restated.

- In order to be consistent with the above amendments to
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27, and as a result of amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in associates, and HKAS 31, Interests in

joint ventures, the following policies will be applied as from

I April 2010:

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree immediately
prior to obtaining significant influence or joint control,
these interests will be treated as if disposed of and
re-acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
significant influence or joint control. Previously, the
step-up approach would have been applied, whereby
goodwill was computed as if accumulated at each stage

of the acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)

28

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- If the Group loses significant influence or joint control,
the transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with any remaining
interest being recognised at fair value as if re-acquired.
Previously such transactions were treated as partial

disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 and HKAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively to
transactions in current or future periods and therefore previous

periods have not been restated.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
sale of garments and textiles, the provision of processing services
and the rental of properties. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial

statements.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to
customers, fee income from processing services and rental income

and is analysed as follows:
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2011 2010

—B——fF —E-BF

$°000 $°000

FT Fr

Manufacture and sale of garments REREERK 1,360,211 1,276,747
Manufacture and sale of textiles REREEHER 31,524 17,031
Processing service income hn T AR AU A 20,254 10,997
Property rental income MEHETWA 4,261 5,267
1,416,250 1,310,042
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

..... TURNOVER (continued) . . . .. ... 3 EXBH
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only two AEBCEFERESAN  RAM
customers (2010: one) with whom transactions have exceeded B(ZE—ZFF: —@f) BN E X3
10% of the Group’s turnover. For the year ended 3| March 2011, EBBAKRERBRAZIN - BEZE =
revenue from sales of garments to these customers, including ——E=ZA=+—HLEE BKH
sales to entities which are known to the Group to be under EXANEERF  BRESHERRFIZG)
common control with these customers, amounted to approximately 2 a8 HiEE5 4 £363,869,000T
$363,869,000 (2010: $196,712,000). Details of concentrations of (ZZE—FF :196,712,0007t) > Lt
credit risk arising from these customers are set out in note 29(a). EXRFMalEz=EEERRAMEMY

B TE M FE29(a) ©
... OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/INCOME = 4. HAWAR (B#8) WAFHE
2011 2010
—®-—-% —F-%F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Other revenue Hilgr A
Commission income LU\ A 1,558 1,864
Dividend income from unlisted FLEHBREFS 2BREWA
equity securities 301 422
Interest income F 2 U A 861 1,041
Management fee income EEERKA 804 804
Government grants BR@EE 2,405 -
Sundry income Hiblgr A 407 522
6,336 4,653
Other net (loss)/income Hit (518) WA FE
Net exchange (loss)/gain EX(EE) WEFHE (1,509) 982
Scrap income BERA 1,911 2,045
Net gain/(loss) on disposals of plant and HEREREEREMEE
machinery and other fixed assets EEWSE(FE) F5E 694 (380)
Net claim (expenses)/income BE(EBR) WBMAFE (4,337) 975
Write-off of intangible assets (note 15) B EEME (FE15) - (1,305)
Recovery of receivables written off in W[5 LA 1E 5 B 81 2 FE UK
prior years 3,055 2,305
Impairment loss on other financial assets HtemEERERE (2,173) —
Extinguishment of aged payables HOR £ HR R E B FE AT RRIE 164 6,395
Sundry income Haug A 8 98
(2,187) 11,115
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5.

BR %t Al 2 A

BREADER 2 MR (GHA) ¢

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2011 2010
—g--% —T-TF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
(a) Finance costs: () MEKA :
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable BARAFRBHEEZ
within five years BITERFE
(including bank charges) (BIERITER) 5,442 5,634
Other interest expenses HiAE X H 253 -
5,695 5,634
(b) Staff costs:* (b)EIRAE:*
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMER 186,593 200,026
Contributions to defined B E R RGR R BIE X
contribution retirement schemes 9,678 10,195
Provision/(reversal of provision) for REHRBESEE (BE)
long service payments, net (note 27) REE (M EE27) 3,517 (3,008)
199,788 207,213
(c) Other items: (c) Ht1EE :
Cost of inventories” FER A& 1,197,870 1,096,120
Amortisation of land lease premium?* FAE & Hh FROE 8 63 70
Depreciation* e 18,135 24,495
Impairment loss on trade and FE W BR Tk R HL fth FE U X
other receivables recognised 2R ERBEER
(note 22(b)) (K1aE22(b)) 35 3,022
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET £ 1,670 1,644 E
Operating lease charges: KEHEER L
minimum lease payments xEBEESRE %
— property rentals” -MEZHE 6,206 7,253 1{
Rentals receivable from investment REYHEIEWE SR E el
properties less direct outgoings of 3 t1,708,000T Iﬁ
$1,708,000 (2010: $1,750,000) —Z—Z4% :1,750,0007T) (2,553) (3,517) /A\
ﬁ]

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Cost of inventories includes $98,769,000 (2010: $104,203,000)

relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, amortisation of land

lease premium and operating lease charges, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

for each of these types of expenses.

this disposal.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF LAND AND
BUILDINGS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

On 9 September 2009, the Company entered into an agreement
with a third party to dispose of land and buildings and investment
properties with total area of approximately 12,440 square meters
situated in Macau for a total consideration of $120,000,000. A gain
on disposal of $81,133,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2010 in respect of

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

BR %t Al i A

# FEREABEEIREN TEEH
HETHRERERCEHEER
B B FR18 98,769,000 (ZF —F
4 1 104,203,0007T) - EEHIBEIER
AELXSBSRZEEERERE
B o

HETHRBFRREVE RS

RZBEEAFHLANB  ADQFHE
—BABUB=FTLHE UER
{B120,000,0007C 5 &y FARFIEE T
HMENBIZAM40FEF Rzt REF
RBREYE - BE-_E—FFE=H
=t+t—RALFE HESERSKE
81,133,000t B R AIBHE R P HE

=
o ©

RERBmRATNFAE

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents: (@ HEBRBXRPATHMAEHRS
2011 2010
—®g—-% —E-®3F
$’000 $°000
F T
Current tax — REBIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBREH
Provision for the year RERIBERE 2,560 5,927
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA {¥ F E B iR E (62) (2,645)
2,498 3,282
Current tax - Outside Hong Kong AEHIEF -FHBEH
Provision for the year AERIEERE 11,296 14,830
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA{¥ F E B REE & (613) (189)
10,683 14,641
Deferred tax EEME
Origination and reversal EREZEMNEEREE
of temporary differences 4,590 2,163
17,771 20,086

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

@

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents:
(continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2011 is
calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable

profits for the year.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are charged at
the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant

jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC,
certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are eligible for the
exemption from income tax for two years starting from the
first profitable year of operation and thereafter, a 50 percent
relief from their applicable tax rate for the following three
years (“the tax holiday”). Pursuant to the notice on the
Implementation Rules of the Grandfathering Relief under the
New Tax Law, Guofa (2007) No.39 issued on 26 December
2007 by the State Council, one of the PRC subsidiaries
enjoyed the tax holiday under the grandfathering provision of
the New Tax Law with the reduced tax rate of 12.5% until
December 2010. All other PRC subsidiaries are subject to an

income tax rate of 25%.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, an intercompany
payable balance of a PRC subsidiary amounting to
RMB53,537,000 has been waived by its immediate holding
company in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the PRC subsidiary
recognised a provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax of
RMB9,489,000 (equivalent to $11,274,000) pursuant to the

relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
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1. GEBEBERATNAEH (&

REBRRPATHNMERS
(&
—E-—FEREBNSHEER
RAFE 2 &5 R EF B
165% (ZF—FF : 16.5%) B
g e A

ES T NG PN R IE
ST EBEA 2 BARE
e

RIBPEWAEBELER  AEEH
o rEMEA R A EER
FEENMERBHAEH LT
HE=ZFRH¥BRE KB
ARMBEABE (RBH]) -
RREERE_ZZELF+-A
“tHtARBEGHC(ENERD
FEHBEEEBRENBAN) (A
#%[2007]393%) * P —RPE M
BARMREH B EUERZE12.5%
WREZERBBME_Z—ZFF
+TZA - FEHEMRENE AR
¥ LA25% M B R EH E IS L

BE-_Z——F=A=+—HL
FER —RHEHNBRARES
HUREEBENEBERAR#SE
FEFERRFRARYES3,537,000 °
Bl REBEPENVEBRER  Z
FENBARERTECEFRE
Fi 25 A K #9,489,000 (18 &
11,274,0007¢5) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. REBRBEXRFATROFAES (A)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at (b) FIEHRZHEMEHEFRBERB
applicable tax rates: R ERH R
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=F
$7000 $°000
Fr Fr
Profit before taxation FRBi A & R 129,415 123,732

Notional tax on profit before taxation, REEHBERESENH

calculated at the rates applicable to BAREGFERBAER

profits in the countries concerned HNEHEHE 24,566 11,700
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR EZ HNFHESE 1,686 4,453
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BAGHRIBRANRELSE (7,110) (3,422)
Tax effect of unused tax losses REZNREARBEEERN

not recognised MEgE 3,138 5101
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MUEFEERERERER

in prior years but utilised during FRABBEENRESE

the year (3,834) (569)
Tax effect of undistributed profits of EERARDERER

jointly controlled entities ZHRESE - 5,657
Over-provision in respect of prior years LA{XFEBEEEE (675) (2,834)
Actual tax expense ERFIEBLH 17,771 20,086

ANTEAIRESW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——F=RA=+—RILFE (LB

8...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION . . ... 8 EZEMs ...
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the RIBBEEBDLARGIE 61 FZREME
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: WECEEMSUT :
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2011
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme —E-—-f
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
R 11
Name of director Exps EzHd REMEF BETL RAEHEN CH
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F Fr
Executive Directors HTEZ
Mr. Chan Sui Kau BREREE 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRXELE 30 2,730 1,025 30 3,815
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAELEE 30 2,730 1,550 60 4,370
Mr. Chan Wing To RKEEE 30 960 1,000 - 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man ALt 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel RARZEE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BBk L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEBLE 30 1,355 720 60 2,165

Independent Non-executive ~ BUYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Wong Lam IREE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping HEFEE 80 - - - 80
Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael AR EE 120 - - - 120

660 10,902 6,495 210 18,267

ANDFEIXNEEW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)

8...DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) ... 8. FESEME M) .. ...
Salaries,
allowances Retirement 2010
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme —E-ZF
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2
Name of director EEHA 0k REMEF MERAL  RRGTEAHRN &%
$000 $000 $°000 $000 $°000
Fr F Fr Fr F
Executive Directors HTER
Mr. Chan Sui Kau C3 P 30 1,463 1,200 - 2,693
Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter BRAELRE 30 2,730 1,025 60 3,845
Mr. Chan Wing Kee BRAELEE 30 2,730 1,550 60 4370
Mr. Chan Wing To Bk EEE 30 960 1,000 - 1,990
Ms. Chan Suk Man RATz+ 30 1,664 1,000 60 2,754
Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel RAZEE 30 - - - 30
Ms. Chan Suk Ling, Shirley BB L 30 - - - 30
Mr. So Ying Woon, Alan BEELE 30 1,355 850 60 2,295

Independent Non-executive ~ BUYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Leung Hok Lim REREE 160 - - - 160
Mr. Wong Lam IREE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Lin Keping MEFEE 60 - - - 60

Mr. Sze Cho Cheung, Michael AR EE - - - - -

520 10,902 6,625 240 18,287
9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS = 9. B@MESAL ...
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the current and AEBRAFEREF 2R UGS
the prior year are all directors of the Company and details of their EATHARQATES  FEMHE 2
emoluments are set out in note 8 above. DR EXHIEES o

ANTEAIRESW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of $98,739,000 (2010: $106,205,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the

Company are set out in note 28(b).

11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11

 RDFRREFEAEBMSGRF

TARRESEAEBLEEREER
BE-Z2IWNAEXQATERE
H9 3% 798,739,000t (ZE—F F :
106,205,0007T) °

ENRESFEAATDREZFTEAZR
BEFEHI A EE28(b) ©

CHMEZREWKE

(a) HtE:mEUESAERBH R

comprehensive income 37
2011 2010
IRk Z%-%f
Before-tax Net-of tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax benefit amount amount  Tax benefit amount
BRasR  HEME REKSE BRESE  WEPE  KEKSE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
r i r i r r
Exchange differences: EXER:
~ translation of financial statements -REFEEINBATRE
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong BERFELZELER 5,332 - 5332 413 - 413
- share of associates’ and jointly -EtBenARaE
controlled entities” exchange NAERRE
reserves 24,698 - 24,698 ,694 - 1,694
— transfer of accumulated exchange -ZHERERRLE
differences to profit or loss on HWELAARERE
disposals of subsidiaries BHERA (506) - (506) - - -
~ transfer of accumulated exchange -EHEREBRLE
differences to profit or loss on BENINERE
disposal of an associate BiER (875) - (875) - - -
28,649 - 28,649 2107 - 2,107
Available-for-sale securities: AfLERS
net movement in the investment REERHEED
revaluation reserve 8 (365) - (365) ] - ]
Cash flow hedges: RemEHH:
net movement in the hedging reserve I AEHEZBFE (3412) 596 (3,016) = = =
Other comprehensive income A2 EkE 24,672 596 25,268 2208 2 2,08

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)

(b) Reclassification adjustments relating to components of

1. Ea2mEWzE (F)

(b) Htt2EKWEMNARDBONVESR

other comprehensive income DEHE
2011 2010
—2-—5 —T-TH
$°000 $°000
F 7 F7
Exchange differences: EXERH:
Translation of financial statements of REEBRINGE QBB
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong WMRAEEZELREZLE 5,332 413
Share of associates’ and jointly controlled FE{LE(& AT REE A A
entities’ exchange reserves PE W% 24,698 1,694
Transfer of accumulated exchange EFfEHREZBEREE
differences to profit or loss on MEARREREERAR
disposals of subsidiaries (506) -
Transfer of accumulated exchange EFfEHREZEREE
differences to profit or loss on BHELRAKREBREREN
disposal of an associate (875) -
Net movement in the exchange reserve F A 7E Hfth 2 H K& A
during the year recognised in other BERNELHE
comprehensive income S FEE 28,649 2,107
Cash flow hedges: ReREHM:
Effective portion of changes in fair FARREHFIEZEN
value of hedging instruments HOoMAFEESD
recognised during the year 3,612 -
Net deferred tax credited to other ELEFEHOFHET A
comprehensive income Hth 2 @WK (596) -
Net movement in the hedging reserve FRAEHMBEZEREN
during the year recognised in other BANE P RESD
comprehensive income e 3,016 -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$111,111,000 (2010: $103,479,000) and 210,369,000 (2010:
210,369,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic
earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 3| March
2011 and 2010.

. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions.

In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the

Group has presented the following three reportable segments. No

operating segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles: this segment
operates the manufacture and sale of garment and textile
products, and the provision of garment sub-contracting

services.

Interests in jointly controlled entities: the Group’s jointly
controlled entities engage in the manufacturing and sale of

textile yarn products.

Property leasing: this segment leases commercial and

industrial premises to generate rental income.

ANNUAL REPORT
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2. BREF

(a) BREXER
BREXBADREERSER
XA REFEEAEMLRF
I11L,111,000c (Z 2 —FF:
103,479,0007t) R FRE BHTE
IR IR 19210,369,0008% (=& —
T 1 210,369,00008) 5T & o

(b) EREBERAR
BE-Z——FR-Z-ZF=
A=+—BLEE > AARLE
EEEBTHERICERR W
HWEREABFESREERF
EIEI

AEBUSBREBHER - REH
LaASERSITHERAEBRITZ
HER (BIEERRIGERE) &
MAEX2IUAT=ZET2®DE - I
ERREMKED IS UEAT I
E®wH -

- BHEREERTRHER D
HEERERFERXRHBE
o RIEHAKNIRE -

- RERAEDZ FEEAERQT

M%EE&?% m/VJiigki‘J\ﬁﬂ? QEEJ °

- YEHEE HoBHEARERT
XEFUHBESWRA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the

following bases:

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
intangible assets, interests in associates, other financial
assets, deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities
managed directly by the segments with the exception
of current tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation

of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and “depreciation and
amortisation” is regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at “adjusted EBITDA”,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
share of profits less losses of associates, directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or corporate

administration costs.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

DEHKE BEERAER
RAEIBREAR IR BE
B AEBESRTHRERASR
UTEREEEZEZT2H 0 AAEE8
MEE EERERE:

HE 78

NHEEREMEEE  ETE
BEVEE BHEQARER H
WEMEE - ELRMEHEE
ABREAPHRBERABEESR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-—T——#=A=t+—AILER (LUETH)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 13. DA E (A

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Manufacture and sale of garments and textiles and property
leasing segments (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar orders.

(2)

DEKE BEEREE(A)
HERFELRR 4 RYF
HE 88 (#E)
BRESHERAZNRIE B
EoERBHEANRE 2D
EX G EEETESEHERA
(BEIMEBBEEE) B
EREECREABRREEZA
BUWARIH & - #H  R
EEERIBABEANEEZF
RBOBEENER - 2 FBEH
ENERSZHMIEALZE
CECHEN R

Interests in jointly controlled entities EELN AR

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are FEBREERTZEBERE
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under R RRRERETTEAR
the equity method, and presented as a separate reportable WA—BIEF2|MIEIIT -

segment. The Group’s senior executive management reviews
the post-tax results of the interests in jointly controlled
entities, which is defined as the reportable segment profit for
this particular segment. Reportable segment assets represent
the Group’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled
entities. Revenue of jointly controlled entities is not
presented as reportable segment revenue as it is not reviewed
by the Group’s senior executive management for resource

allocation purposes.

FEESRITHREEAEENS
ENRBERBR 2EE
END BRI ERAT2H D
A ATFERIMEENERE
BEECSENRAEEFE AR
FEESRITHEBRAERERE
BagRREERNREERD
B HEERIYRREATERD
BUAFIR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-2——F=A=t—RILER CUETH)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) . . . . .. | 18,2 S aPR S (A A A Pt Y
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) PWEBE BEEREE(H)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as BE-E——ENE-F5=
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management A=+—BLEE > BHFKE
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of BEReTHREEAEREERD
segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2011 and NS BREFENAERET
2010 is set out below: 2RI BEHAOT :
Manufacture and sale of  Interests in jointly
garments and textiles  controlled entities Property leasing Total
HERBERK
REER RENAER NEEE g
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

“%--F “%-3F -%¥--Ff "T-FF -%--F "T-TF -R--F "3-3%
£000 $000 $000 $000 £000 $000 $000 $000
Fi Fr 7z I Fi Fr 7z Fr

Revenue from external customers  RESNREFHMA 1,411,989 1304775 - - 4,261 5267 1,416,250  1310,042
Inter-segment revenue AHEBERA = - = - 2,734 3743 2,734 3743
Reportable segment revenue A 2HHAFRA 1,411,989 1304775 - - 6,995 9010 1,418,984 1,313,785

Reportable segment profit ATERHHER

(adjusted EBITDA) (MBHE HE
REREHAN
BEARNNE) 42,638 3373 72,594 34237 5,391 6713 120,623 30
Interest income FIEWA 861 1,041 - - - - 861 1,041
Finance costs HERR (5,695) (5,634) - - - - (5,695) (5,634)
Depreciation and amortisation 178 [ (18,198)  (24565) - - - - (18,198)  (24565)
Impairment loss on EEEEREHE
fixed assets BE/ (BR)
reversed/(recognised) 5,498 (21,014) - - - - 5,498 (21,014)

i Reportable segment assets AT EZRMAHEE 619,558 578415 610,400 513,133 105,056 83711 1,335,014 1175259
% Additions to non-current segment  F B RIEMFER

X assets during the year AHEE 15,293 4155 - - - - 15,293 4155
g Reportable segment liabilities A¥E2HNAHEE BIAT4 185774 - - - 206 231,474 185980
N

=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—T —F=ZA=+—BHLLFE LETH)
. DR E ()

(b) EFERHIHBA  BFHE

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

or loss, assets and liabilities

B -EEREEZHESR

2011 2010
S
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue BAF 2R D ZBUA 1,418,984 1,313,785
Elimination of inter-segment revenue DEEKBU AT EE (2,734) (3,743)
Consolidated turnover mEEER 1,416,250 1,310,042
2011 2010
—2-——5 —Z-®%H
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Profit & Al
Reportable segment profit derived REEEIREFND
from Group’s external customers A (RS - BB e
(adjusted EBITDA) REBHEANARZNRE) 120,623 72,323
Finance costs & A (5,695) (5,634)
Share of profits less losses of associates FE LB D BR AR E B 484 1,306
Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR KR FEE 1,808 -
Gain on disposal of an associate HERE QRS 293 -
Impairment losses on interest in Bt e m MR AR T MR A
associate and dividend receivable RAIREZRHERE
from associate reversed/(recognised) BE (R 7,914 (7,914)
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEEREEHERE
reversed/(recognised) (ER) 5,498 (21,014)
Gain on disposals of land and buildings HELTHREFK
and investment properties REWMEK S - 81,133 E
Net valuation gains on investment REMEMLE WS FHE 3
properties 20,298 20,915 L
Other revenue and net (loss)/income Hhlg A R HAth (BE) %
Wi F &R 4,149 15,768 x
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (18,198) (24,565) ﬁ
Unallocated head office and ROBFRBREXER B
corporate expenses (7,759) (8,586) /A\
7l
Consolidated profit before taxation e R B AR F 129,415 123,732

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

93



ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALEE LETH)
13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 13. DA E (A

7

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit

(b) BEFEHRMNDIBWA ~ BERIRES
B -BEREBBZYHER(#)

or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

ANTEAIRESW
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2011 2010
—®--% C—B-%%F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets BFERNDIBEE 1,335,014 1,175,259
Intangible assets mEEE 1,569 1,569
Interests in associates HEQATER 203 -
Other financial assets HittemEE 7,854 5,820
Deferred tax assets ELEFAEHEE 17,974 17,301
Current tax recoverable ] E R AHI R 1E 2,447 2,311

Unallocated head office and ROBHEBRECEEE
corporate assets 315 986
Consolidated total assets REEEHE 1,365,376 1,203,246
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-BF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr

Liabilities B

Reportable segment liabilities AF2HRNOHER 231,474 185,980
Current tax payable FEAT A BB 1R 11,274 17,131
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTBHER 30,968 26,788

Unallocated head office and KOBHRIRECEARE
corporate liabilities 1,825 3,595
Consolidated total liabilities mEBBERE 275,541 233,494

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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BF 7% R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B2 —F=A=t+—RILFE (L&)

ANNUAL REPORT

10/11 FEFH

(c) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets, intangible assets,
goodwill, interests in associates and jointly controlled entities
and prepayment for fixed assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment, the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible
assets and goodwill, and the location of operations, in the

case of interests in associates and jointly controlled entities.

13. DA E (H)

(c) HESHER

TREINEBO)EAEERB IR
BEEHRBA RIVAEEBREE
E-BEEE -BE REEAQ
AIREGEQAEELRBEEREE
EEAR(BEFRRBEED W
HESBER - BFAEMIRR
HEHEREEMBME o FEIH
RBEEFHNE - BERR
FEHRREEENERNEM
T EVEEREERESE
WEEMBEmE MEEQAAR
BERRERAERAIREEE
1y BT E o

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMREFHBA BEERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
2% C—ZT-ZFf B C—ZT-%F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr F Fr F
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BEB(AREEHLH) 99,241 119,540 111,448 94,346
Europe 5@
— United Kingdom - KE 327,677 296,514 - -
— France —EE 2,169 26,506 = -
— Other European countries - HtBUNE R 499,511 425,194 - -
Mainland China EbN 168,836 187,692 709,468 608,775
North America 3t ZEM 186,363 152,317 - -
Others Hith 132,453 102,279 2,631 1,568
1,317,009 1,190,502 712,099 610,343
1,416,250 1,310,042 823,547 704,689
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5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALEE LETH)

AASTIRED NSSETS 111 le ) SR 0 A R IR 1, IS BRI Dty
(a) The Group (a) &%

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating

ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties lease Total
#EER BEgE
L BE Rt HEZAR

kgF k% ETEE M RENE BELH L

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

Cost or valuation: RAG A :
At | April 2009 RZZZnE
A-H 117,236 200,171 98,390 415,797 93,028 3,049 511,874
Exchange adjustments ERAR 196 567 168 931 70 10 1,011
Transferred from construction ERBEEIR
in progress - 1,232 - 1,232 - - 1,232
Additions ®E - 467 3,067 3,534 - - 3,534
Disposals HE (21,717) (19,598) (3,750 (45,065) (30,302) - (75,367)
Surplus on revaluation EffBRH - - - - 20,915 - 20,915
At 31 March 2010 R-2-%%
=ZA=+-H 95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199
Representing: %
Cost B 51,623 182,839 97,875 332,337 - 3,059 335,396
Valuation - 1997 ffE -—AREE 4409 - - 44,092 - - 44,09
-2010 -ZE-%f - - - - 83,711 - 83,711

95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199

ANTEAIRESW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE"ZT——F=A=1+—RHIFE (L&)
14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . .. . 4. BEBEM) ...
(a) The Group (continued) (a) X5KHE (&)
Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for ~ Plant and Other Investment  operating
ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties lease Total
#EER BEgE
fti BE Bt HEZER
k& k#E EEEE M REWME HELH ait
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost or valuation: RAG A
At | April 2010 RZZ-2F
A-H 95,715 182,839 97,875 376,429 83,711 3,059 463,199
Exchange adjustments ERHE 2,301 7,096 2,457 11,854 1,047 128 13,029
Additions BE - 7,783 4,237 12,020 - - 12,020
Disposals LE
- through disposals -ERLENBLR
of subsidiaries - (7,077) (3,157) (10,234) - (351) (10,585)
- others -t - (3,409) (2,498) (5,907) - - (5,907)
Surplus on revaluation ELBE - - - - 20,298 - 20,298
At 31 March 2011 RZ2--%
=A=t-H 98,016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
Representing: &
Cost AR 46,142 187,232 98914 332288 - 283 33514
Valuation - 1997 fhE -—ANEE 51874 - - 51,874 - - 51,874
- 2011 -Z%—-% = - - - 105,056 - 105,056
98,016 187,232 98,914 384,162 105,056 2,836 492,054
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE WETH)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . ... . 14. BEBE@M)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) X5HE (&)

Interest in
leasehold
land held
Land and for own
buildings use under
held for  Plant and Other Investment  operating

ownuse machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties lease Total
KRR BEgE
ft BE At HEZAA

kgF k% ETEE M RENE BELH L

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
77 7 7 77 7 7 7T

Accumulated amortisation, Zit#  FEK

depreciation and HE:
impairment:
At | April 2009 R=ZEABA-A 4753 141,191 73,067 261,791 - 946 262,737
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 90 406 132 628 - 3 631
Charge for the year TEERBERITE 4421 10,405 9,669 24,495 - 70 24,565
Weritten back on disposals HERER (13,1520 (19,156) (3427)  (35735) - - (35,735)
Impairment loss AEEE - 19,044 1,677 20,721 - 293 21,014
At 31 March 2010 R=B-%F
=Zh=t-8H 38,892 151,890 81,118 271,900 - 1312 7321
At 1 April 2010 R=Z-ZEMA-0 3889 151,890 81,118 271,900 - 1312 7321
Exchange adjustments ERAZ 986 5,836 2,088 8910 - 48 8,958
Charge for the year REEEHRIE 3842 6713 7,580 18,135 - 63 18,198
Written back on disposals HERER
- through disposals of -EBHENBLA
subsidiaries - (3,487) (2,200) (5,687) - (59) (5,746)
- others -Hfth - (2.941) 2.231) 517 - - 5.172)
Reversal of impairment loss i EERE - (3.961) (1,241) (5,202) - (296) (5,498)
B At 31 March 2011 R=B--F
1 RPN SASECR 4T Is0s0 esi4 amem - L a9
% Net book value: REFE:
£ At 31 March 2011 R=B--%
B =ZB=t-H 54,296 33,182 13,800 101,278 105,056 1,768 208,102
% At 31 March 2010 R=2-%F
W] ZR=t-H 56,823 30,949 16,757 104,529 83,711 1,747 189,987
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALEE WETH)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . ... ... . 4. BEBEM) ...
(b) The Company (b) AAF
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties Total
AN BE Hit
THRETF kR EEEE M REWE cH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr F

Cost or valuation: B EE :

At | April 2009 R=ZZZENFMA—H 45,789 146 27,028 72,963 104,164 177,127
Additions BE - - 697 697 - 697
Disposals HE (11,830) - (1,110) (12,940) (30,302) (43242)
Surplus on revaluation Efh &8k - - - - 33,108 33,108
At3l March 2010 R-Z-F&
ZA=+t-8 33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690
Representing: LE
Cost RA - 146 26,615 26,761 - 26,761
Valuation - 1997 & -—hhtE 33,959 - - 33,959 - 33,959
-2010 -ZE-Zf - - - - 106,970 106,970
33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690
Cost or valuation:  BAE G :
At | April 2010 RZE-ZTFWA—AH 33,959 146 26,615 60,720 106,970 167,690
Additions ®E - - 2,094 2,094 - 2,094
Disposals HE - - (1,831) (1,831) - (1,831
Reclassification BEFAE 7,782 - - 7,782 (7,782) -
Surplus on revaluation BB - - - - 31,993 31,993
At31 March 2011 RZE—--& E
=A=t-8 41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946 %
Representing: W £ 3
Cost R = 146 26,878 27,024 S 27,024 ﬁ
Valuation - 1997 &5 ——hAntE 41,741 = = 41,741 = 41,741 {58
-2011 -ZE-——F - - 5 = 131,181 131,181 »n
G|
41,741 146 26,878 68,765 131,181 199,946
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)

14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) . . . . ... . 14. BEBEM) ...
(b) The Company (continued) (b) A&RT (#)
Land and
buildings
held for  Plant and Other Investment
own use machinery fixed assets  Sub-total properties Total
BEAAN K Hit
TREF k#E EEEE P REWE EE
$°000 $000 $000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr T F
Accumulated R EBH - FTER
amortisation, AE

depreciation and

impairment:

At | April 2009 RZEZENFNA—-H 14,083 146 20,293 34,522 - 34,522
Charge for the year ~ KAEEHH - TERFHE 1,718 - 2,274 3992 - 399
Weritten back on HEREE

disposals (3,265) - (1,107) (4372) - (4372)

At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZF

ZR=1+-8 12,536 146 21,460 34,142 - 34,142
At | April 2010 R-ZE-ZFNA-A 12,536 146 21,460 34,142 - 34,142
Charge for the year ~ AFE#H  HEREE 2767 - 2,534 5,301 - 5,301
Written back on HERER
disposals - - (1,816) (1,816) - (1,816)

At 31 March 2011 R-B——-%

Net book value: BREFE -
At 3l March 2011 RZ-Z——-%
=A=+-H 26,438 - 4,700 31,138 131,181 162,319

At 31 March 2010 RZE-ZF
A=+-H 21,423 < 5,155 26,578 106,970 133,548

ANTEAIRESW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN
5 %5 7% B &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-2——F=A=t—RILERE CUETH)
(c) Revaluation of investment properties
All investment properties of the Group and the Company
were revalued at 31 March 2011 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were
carried out by independent firms of surveyors, Knight Frank
Petty Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of the

properties being valued.

(d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as

1S

14. BIEEE (#)

(c) REYEEM
RZB——F=A=+—-H%KE
ERAQNBDNEEMEREBSIK
AFRHEY BEZRBNYETIHEE
HEBERTEARTEMNTE
HEHESE -  WERBIL S
TEERBAFTMITERABRR
KFTHEREBER A R EL G
B ZEUNEMT2BEAREE
REMBEEEREE > AR
HENEZHERENEEEE
e o

(d) MEZRAFEIHROT :

follows:
The Group The Company
rEE AAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
“§-—5 -F-TF —F-—§F -F-%F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr FT Fr F
Medium term leases HEIRA
- in Hong Kong -&B 104,688 86,879 157,619 128,393
- outside Hong Kong -BENUIIME 56,432 55,402 - -
161,120 142,281 157,619 128,393
Representing: K&
Land and buildings T REF 54,296 56,823 26,438 21,423
Investment properties REME 105,056 83,711 131,181 106,970
159,352 140,534 157,619 128,393
Interest in leasehold land BECEREY
held for own use under BERfELH
operating lease 1,768 1,747 - -
161,120 142,281 157,619 128,393

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

(e) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group and the Company lease out investment properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to seven years, with an option to renew the
lease after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The gross carrying amounts of investment properties of the
Group and the Company held for use in operating leases were
$105,056,000 (2010: $83,711,000) and $131,181,000 (2010:
$106,970,000), respectively.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property are

classified as investment properties.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

CEEEE ()

() URBHEANHLENEETEE

AEBRAADAUREREEYN
HAREMHE - HESWIH—
RE-—S2tF YEEEREE
EHRREBEELN  ERAAEROK
REYEHHE - MEHESHL
TREXEEE -

TEBREAQAAFELERSE
WEEMELREED B A
105,056,000 (= F — & F:
83,711,0005T) & 131,181,0007T
(Z=—Z% 1106,970,0007T) °

FFEREREMEERUZER
ENANNEIBERRENE -

AEERBIUBBRNEERE
EHABRWNREHEESRESR
HOT :

2011 2010

—®-—% C—®B-%%F

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Within | year —FR 5,140 4,333
After | year but within 5 years —F®ELFR 11,010 -
More than 5 years BEFEMUE 426 -
16,576 4,333
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE=F——F=A=1—ALEE (NETH)

15.

() Impairment loss on fixed assets reversed/(recognised) (Hh BETEEREFERE (FR)
During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group underwent BZE-Z-ZF=ZA=+—H1
a restructuring of its operations in the PRC pursuant to which FERN AEBEAERPELK
certain factories were closed down and related fixed assets EMERER 2 EK  MEEKE
became idle. Management assessed the recoverable amounts BrEEEERARE BEEE
of the Group’s fixed assets taking into consideration the RIEZEEEEENT AT
usability of those fixed assets. As a result of this assessment, HuEgsE Bt REBE=
an impairment loss of $21,014,000 was recognised in the —EF=ZRA=+—-HLEE"
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March WEE 821,014,000t EEEEE
2010. The estimates of recoverable amount were based BRWHER - TREIHELIRIE
on the assets’ fair values less costs to sell, determined by ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ’&$ﬁﬁﬂﬂj%ﬁk$%§
reference to the recent observable market prices for similar £ 2R —TEHRREE
assets within the same industry. As there has been no ENTBERSERME - thiE
change in circumstances during the current year, no further MREERI RN E  H LI E
impairment loss was recognised. E-SHEIBEESE -
On | October 2010, the Group disposed of 66.7% equity R-ZBE-ZFF+H—H ' X&
interest in a subsidiary, Top Yield, to an independent third BHEHEKE QBRI Z66.7%
party (note 17(c)(ii)). Since then, Top Yield became an ERESETF-—BILE=7 (M
associate of the Group. On the date of disposal, a reversal of 17(c)(ii)) - BZ B BERA
impairment loss on fixed assets of $5,498,000 was recognised. AEE-—FREEQT - REEE
B #2525 B R B &5 185,498,000
T o
....... INTANGIBLE ASSETS ... \.B|EEE . ...
Club debentures =3
The Group The Company
r5HE NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
- CZE-2f ZEB--§ ZE-Ef
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000
F Fr Fr F
At the beginning of the year REH 1,569 2,874 1,569 2,384
Amount written off during the year AEEMEESH
(note 4) (Hiit4) - (1,305) - (815)
At the end of the year REZK 1,569 1,569 1,569 1,569
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

L0 COODWILLA VL1 le X L SR I8 AR BT 1 F Ak ATR TR T8 L E ey el
The Group
&
2011 2010
—g——% -T-%%
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Cost: AR
At the beginning and the end of the year REDRFL 2,177 2,177
Accumulated amortisation and R #HERBEEES
impairment losses:
At the beginning and the end of the year REDRER 2,177 2,177
Carrying amount: RESE:
At the beginning and the end of the year REDRFL - -
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES . 17. BB Q B ES
The Company
ARF
2011 2010
—2--5 =—T-TF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRG B 32,245 32,245
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT BB 1 B FR IR 100,947 87,221
133,192 119,466
Less: Impairment loss W OREER (23,274) (27,582)
E 109,918 91,884
L
i‘{ The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBABRAFEBEBESEIKR  1&
ﬁ not expected to be recoverable within one year from the balance MEREHNEER —FERFEURE o
m sheet date.
/A\
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7% R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

(a) The particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the

results, assets or liabilities of the Group at 31 March 2011

are as follows. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

incorporation/

Place of Issued and

paid up share

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11

17. B AR ER ()

@ RZIE——F=HA=+-—8 %
TEBEE EEJEBEEKN
FECIEMBARZHERBN
T -BREEFTHIN IFEEZR
BIREBR -

Percentage of

equity held by

establishment  capitallregistered the the

Name of Company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
3084 ERITRAR BAEREXEAL

NEER REEHY RE/EREE FEE LN TEXH
Whampoa Textile Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
ERIHAERLT Bt REZER
Hong Kong Knitters Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Garment
BERBERRAR BB manufacturing and
investment holding
RRRER
REER
Easeley Knitwear Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Garment
RIS ERERD 7 &R manufacturing
RAREE
Exquisite Knitters (Guangzhou) The PRC HK$75,600,000 100 - Knitting and dyeing
Limited? FE of fabrics and
SHEE (BN BRAR" manufacturing
of garments
REE  BR
KA REE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$17,800,000 100 - Garment
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. # FE manufacturing
ERIAX(EMBRAT MR RE
Whampoa Garment Manufacturing The PRC HK$18,000,000 100 - Garment
(Guigang) Co., Ltd. # (Note (b)) e manufacturing

BRIRK(EB)BERLQ T #Eb)

BARHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
17. B QA& (A)

Place of Issued and Percentage of

incorporation/ paid up share equity held by

ANERIREET

106

establishment  capitallregistered the the
Name of Company and operation capital Group Company Principal activity
30 Vo ERITRARE RAEREXEIL
DAL REEHE RA/EREE r5E LN TEER
Lavender Garment Limited Bangladesh Taka35,511,050 69 - Garment
&M manufacturing
HREE
Vestis Limited United Kingdom GBP2 100 100 Garment wholesaling
%E B HE B
# These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises # BZEDNRANPERIZEAMNEED
established in the PRC. The English translation of the names is ¥ o ZELEVUPLEEEM =
for reference only. The official names of these entities are in YHENRT  EftzaE.
Chinese.
(b) On 24 February 2011, the Group established Whampoa by RZE——F-HAZ-+MWMAB &
Garment Manufacturing (Guigang) Co., Ltd. EERYERIIEK(EE)AR
NG
(c) Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries (c) HEMBATWEFEE
(i) On 14 March 2011, the Group deregistered its wholly iy R=ZFB——F=A+DIAB -
owned subsidiary, Guangzhou Shi Yue Trading Co., Ltd. AEBFHAZEHRENE
(BEMHmtHME S ERATF), and resulted in a loss on AAEMNTHBEZERA
disposal of $404,000. AIZEXNR  BREBHEE
$5404,0007T ©
(i) On | October 2010, the Group disposed of 66.7% (il R=ZE—ZFF+A—H K

equity interest in a subsidiary, Top Yield, to an
independent thirty party for a cash consideration of
RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to $2,320,000), resulting in
a net gain on disposal of $2,212,000. Top Yield then
became an associate of the Group. The principal activity

of Top Yield was garment manufacturing.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

£ B A R #2,000,000 (18
£ 72,320,000T) 2EH &R
EBER—BIYE=AHERM
266 7% AR 0 1S H
£ IR 3% 7F 562,212,0007T © [F]
HMARKAREE—REE
AT AMZEEE£HKEK
RELE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFEE BT

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) .. | 7. B ARER (/)
(c) Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries (continued) () HEMBATWZEFLE (&)
$°000
FrT
Assets and liabilities (other than cashor EHEEZEEREB(REH
cash equivalents) disposed of: RESEURIMN) ¢
Fixed assets EEEE 4,839
Trade and other receivables FE U B R R LAt 8 UK 38
Trade and other payables B RARR B AR (4,027)
850
Cash consideration BERE 2,320
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERERREEEY (677)
Net assets (other than cash or cash equivalents) E HEEEFE (REeIBREZEEY
disposed of (per above) BRHM) (g0 bit) (850)
Exchange differences transferred to ERZHEREREERE
consolidated income statement 910
Recognition of interest in an associate, RHEBEQNRREI 2ER
upon disposal 509
Gain on disposal of interest in subsidiary HEMB A AER 2 W& 2,212
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents on HEMNBLARAEREZRER
disposal of interest in subsidiary REeEEYREFEE (677)
In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, the REBEEWHZ RZZ——F
outstanding consideration of $2,320,000 as at 3| March 201 | A=t —HBZ2ARBHRE
is expected to be received within one year from the balance 2,320,000t EHIREER —F R

sheet date. g E o

ANDFEIXNEEW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
VE=F——F= A=+ —HILEE LUETH)
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group
rEHE

2011 2010
—g——% -T-%%
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Share of net assets EihEEFEE 203 6,997
Less: Impairment loss B REEE - (6,997)
203 -

(a) The particulars of the associate at 31 March 2011, which is an

unlisted entity, is as follows:

(@ RZE——F=A=+—HBzH¥
ERR(B—RFLHAR) 27#
BT :

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
R 3L FEREXBIH
DNEEB R AR 1 B REE AT TEXEH
Guangzhou Top Yield The PRC 333 - Garment
Garment Limited” e manufacturing

EMNEBREKERD T

# The associate is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
in the PRC. The English translation of the name is for reference

only. The official name of this entity is in Chinese.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFEE BT

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) . ... . 18, MERARE M) ...
(b) Summary financial information on associates (b) HEATUBEERBE
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
BE =R E#E WA Pl
$000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
2011 —E——-fF
100 per cent BAaZ—H 8,225 (7.617) (608) 82,077 2,253
Group’s effective AEFERER
interest 2,742 (2,539) (203) 20,571 484
2010 —E-FF
100 per cent BoZ—H 76,990 (49,000) 27,990 84,048 5,225
Group’s effective rEBERER
interest 19,247 (12,250) 6,997 21,012 1,306
Gain on disposal of an associate (c) HEHEATWE

(©)

On | January 2011, the Group ceased to have significant
influence over an associate, Qinghai Changchun Carbon Co.,
Ld. (BBRBWEBMRAT]). Accordingly, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the associate, with a
resulting gain of $293,000 being recognised in profit or loss.
The disposal is expected to complete in 2013 and is subject to

the approval from the local government authorities.

R-ZZB——F—A—H £&H
THHEBRENRESERERES
RARBEAREE D Bt &
HEBRENT 22 MERAR
I 718 & A TR & 48 W #293,000
o HERRESE M BUTH
BOEHER-ZE—Z=ZF%RK -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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BF % ¥ 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

(d)

Impairment losses on interest in associate and
dividend receivable from associate reversed/
(recognised)

The majority of the turnover of the associate, Qinghai
Changchun Carbon Co., Ltd. was sales made to a single
aluminium producer based in the PRC. This aluminium
producer ceased operations in June 2010 due to the
restructuring of the aluminium industry in accordance with
the policy of the PRC government. The future prospect
of the associate was highly uncertain given the lack of
new customers and its ability to continue to operate.
The directors of the Group are in the opinion that it
is unlikely that the associate will generate earnings or
distribute dividends in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
an impairment loss on interest in associate amounting to
$6,997,000, together with the dividend receivable from the
associate of $917,000 was made in the financial statements for
the year ended 3| March 2010.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, Qinghai Changchun
Carbon Co., Ltd., solicited new customers and repaid the
dividend and therefore no further impairment loss was
recognised. On 3| December 2010, the major shareholder of
the associate decided to take sole control of the associate.
A consideration of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to $5,941,000)
and a dividend of RMB806,000 (equivalent to $917,000) was
received from the major shareholder and Qinghai Changchun
Carbon Co., Ltd, respectively. As a result, impairment loss on
interest in associate and dividend receivable from an associate
totalling $7,914,000 provided was reversed to profit or loss

during the year ended 31 March 201 1.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

18, BE&E NE R (H)

(d)

BEATERREREBEE QAR
BEZREBERE(BR)

HERNRBEBREREERAF
REEETERBE —FRH
BRI ZEEEFHEER ' H
B A9 63 88 T 2 B Mk BB B K
RBEMETRE  ZREED
ERZE-ZBERAFLEE-
BENTAHARREZTNEFRR
BHEENBERLE  SHRRNW
RISFETHYE AEEEER
R BEQXREAERNARRG
TAIREREUBI A SH D IR S © &
It - B & A B #E556,997,0000T &
FEUR B = A B IR 2.917,0007T KU IR
BEEBECTABEZE-_Z—ZF=
B=+—BLEERER-

E-E——F=ZA=+—HLHF
ER SERERZARLAE
BHFEFRERMIAKRE  Hit
WHRE-SERFHEBE A=
E-ZTF+_H=+—H K&
RAZEERFAEMESHERE
—BHE - EARBEBREERRE
KB A R #5,000,000 (18 %
75,941,000T) MEBREFHRE
BIRDQ A X E AR ¥806,000
(FAZH917,0005T) o FE Ik - B
NEEERERBEE ATREN
B E B E#E 7,914,000t E &
HWE TREE=T——F=
B=+—BLFERNEBRZARE
8] o
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——F=RA=+—RILFE (LB
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. & QAAER
....... ENTURIES S8 X a2 o ol o D ol L I N Bt W EEn U e S
The Group The Company
big- AAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
“g-—-% -%-%F —§—-§ C-%-%F
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr F Fr F
Unlisted investments, at cost FLHRE  BRAE - - 230,818 230,818
Share of net assets BEEEZFE 610,400 513,133 - -
610,400 513,133 230,818 230, 818

Details of the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities at 31

March 2011 are as follows:

RZZE-——F=A=1+—H0 *5H
REEQTARBZERFIIMT :

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the

Name of Company and operation Group Company Principal activity

oA FERETESH
NEAER RBE EE PN TEEH
Wouxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd. The PRC 49 49 Investment holding
EBH-BREFRLE HEl REER
Taizhou Changxin Textile The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
(Xinghua) Co., Ltd.* A textile products
RMEFGE (B) BRA T 8 i B
Allied Textiles Limited* The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
g E A B AR A " HE garments and textiles
RS EIE A S
Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BEHRIBEHHBERA A HE sale of textiles

HERHEL AR

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

FEFRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T——F=A=+—ALFE LOBTH)
19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. &N FIER (&

Percentage of ownership

Place of interest held by
establishment the the
Name of Company and operation Group Company Principal activity
o REREES
RAEB R B rEE ARF TEEB
Wouxi Yangtzekiang Textile Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacture and
BEBFIREBHBERAF HE sale of textiles
Dongtai NAA Textiles Co., Ltd.* The PRC 49 - Manufacturing of
RANRHBERA 7> HE garments and textiles
BTk R 45 48 R 3
* Wholly owned subsidiaries of Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., * WS —IRIREBRARNZEEHEEN
Ltd. BAT
All of the jointly controlled entities are sino-foreign equity joint FrESEZRNatABRNPERKMY ZF 5
ventures established in the PRC. The English translation of the CEREPE - ZEPEH P TH
names of all of the jointly controlled entities is for reference only. I BEXHENRE EitgE .

The official names of these entities are in Chinese.

ANTEAIRESW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFEE BT
19. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED EE QTR (F)

Summary financial information on the jointly controlled EEARMBENSE-FEEERE
entities — Group’s effective interest: = .
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=F
$°000 $°000
T Fr
Non-current assets ERBEE 672,340 687,627
Current assets RBEE 415,178 352,542
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (17,986) (62,253)
Current liabilities REBEE (459,132) (464,783)
Net assets EEFHE 610,400 513,133
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Income (' ON 857,364 661,206
Expenses X (784,770) (626,969)
Profit for the year REERF 72,594 34,237

ANDFEIXNEEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——F=A=t+—RHLLFE LET)

20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS . . ... 20 Hfte®@aEE ...
The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2011 2010 2011 2010
g--5 -2-BF -%--F -B-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Held-to-maturity debt securities: FRZIHERES .

Listed outside Hong Kong BN LT 1,943 - 1,943 -

Available-for-sale equity securities: AREERERS
Unlisted, at cost FEm o BEA 3,028 855 855 855
Listed outside Hong Kong, at market value ~ &AM LT BZHE 5,056 4910 5,056 4910
8,084 5,765 5911 5,765
Loan receivable EWE - 55 - 55
10,027 5,820 7,854 5,820
Less: Impairment loss " OREEE (2,173) - - -
7,854 5,820 7,854 5,820

Fair value of individually ERIRE 2 ATt &

impaired available-for-sale REES2ATEE

equity securities 4,709 4,591 4,709 4,591

ANBEIXNEHT
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For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 20 HttSMEE (#F

At 31 March 2011, the loan receivable was repayable as follows: R-ZE——F=F=+—H EKE
RZBRBWT :

The Group and the Company

REBRERQF
2011 2010
—®-—5 =—2-%%F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Within | year (note 22) RER (K1aF22) 55 667
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFER - 55
55 722
The loan receivable at 31 March 2011 is unsecured and interest- R-BE——FE=B=+—H2EKE
bearing at 6.5% (2010: 6.5%) per annum on the principal R RERIERUERNR6 5% (—ZF—
outstanding. The loan is repayable in 36 monthly equal instalments EFE 65%):TEFE - ERED AH36
with the final instalment maturing in April 201 1. HESES TN -BE——FUAAEERE
—HEE-
21 INVENTORIES | e 21. BEK
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise: () FERBEEEBXREE:
The Group The Company
33 KD
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% -Z-%F —¥--F —F-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Raw materials R 16,125 8,324 3,163 89 1=
Work in progress R 93,084 61,593 32,735 21,009 "]:
Finished goods B m 30,944 20,499 633 1,830 |
140,153 90,416 36,531 B58 A
/A\
7l
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE LETH)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

as an expense and included in profit or loss is as

EE (&)

(b) FEHBIEIHRBELERS
R DT

follows:
The Group
AEE

2011 2010
—2-—5 =—T-TF
$°000 $°000
Fr F
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHERAE 1,203,651 1,089,858
Write-down of inventories FE #Mos 1,919 10,134
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRERRE (7,700) (3,872)
1,197,870 1,096,120

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years
arose due to an increase in the net realisable value of garment
products by reference to sales made subsequent to the year

end.

ANTEARESW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——F=RA=+—RILFE (L&)
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. MW IR H 4t B WK

The Group The Company
r&HE ARH
2011 2010 2011 2010
g--5 -B-BF -%--§ -B-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Current Vil
Trade debtors FE W B 99,451 101,936 26,564 20,134
Bills receivable EhEE 82,944 48,327 54,769 27,519
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W RIERRBE (6,284) (8,955) (263) (265)
176,111 141,308 81,070 47,388
Loan receivable (note 20) W E R (ff7220) 55 667 55 667
Deposits, prepayments and BH - BARK
other debtors Hi R 49,278 22,821 26,323 5,680
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGI S - - 168,775 157,565
Amounts due from related companies EWEEATRE 4,184 3,020 1,983 289
Amounts due from jointly controlled EBHREEQRHE
entities 1,413 1,351 - -
Amount due from an associate e B = N B RIE 3,979 - - -
Amount due from shareholder W —REME
— Chan Family Investment — Chan Family
Corporation Limited Investment
Corporation
Limited - - 35 208
Dividend receivable from BREEARRE
a jointly controlled entity - 28,772 - -
Dividend receivable from Bl —AiEE AR
a former associate RE 1,295 - - -
236,315 197,939 278,241 211,797

All of Group’s and the Company’s trade and other receivables are

expected to be recovered or recognised as an expense within one

year.

The amounts due from subsidiaries, related companies, jointly

controlled entities and an associate are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

REBRADBRERBIRRRH M
BUHRHEHR-—FAKEHERS

X e

BWHELR -BELR - SEDF
REBELNARERRLBES  TFA
B UFERBHNBEE -

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE LETH)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BURARE B (&) .
(a) Ageing analysis (a) RO
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and REEBEREERBRR R EM
bills receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the FEWFRARE LT BRER 2 4T 2 FEUR
following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: BRAREWREZE (SHKRRAERRE
)
The Group The Company
rEE NG|

2011 2010 2011 2010

—g—-% -T-%TF —B—-F -T-%F

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr

Current REH 132,186 115,949 71,738 41,879

Less than 61 days past due B R6I B 37,788 19,637 1,852 5,206

61 to 90 days past due BH61Z90H 1,733 2,830 259 29

More than 90 days past due BE90H L E 4,404 2,892 1,221 274

Amounts past due RS 43,925 25,359 9,332 5,509

176,111 141,308 81,070 47,388
Trade debtors and bills receivable are due between 30 to 120 FEREGREREEEREQH
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s Z30ZI1200BEREH - KEE®
credit policy are set out in note 29(a). FEBRWE - THBERME

29(a) °
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5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFE BT

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) =~ 22, BURARE B () .
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) ERERREREEHEE

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills TEWERRREREE ZRHES

receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless B AEASEINEBERYD -

the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, FRIEAEBAERE B B IKREZRIE

in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade HI AT BE MR IR - BREMREEIE

debtors and bills receivable directly (see note | (k)(i)). BEHEREWRAIREKREZES

Wss (Z2BME1(K)(3) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the FARBERERENED (BEE
year, including both specific and collective loss components, is RHAFEEERMD)OT :
as follows:
The Group The Company
r&E NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
2 ZEZ-%TF ZB--§ C"E-ZF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr F
At the beginning of the year RE] 8,955 5,933 265 201
Impairment loss recognised REFBEZER
(note 5(c)) (Hi&t5(c)) 35 3,022 35 64
Uncollectible amounts written off s R el &5 (2,706) - (37) -
At the end of the year RER 6,284 8,955 263 265

ANDFEIXNEEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-_T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22, BURARE B (&) .
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) EWERREKZERE(F)

(continued)
At 31 March 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s trade R-ZE——F=ZF=+—8H"
debtors and bills receivable of $6,284,000 (2010: $8,959,000) REBE KA DQE D 5 56,284,000
and $263,000 (2010: $265,000) respectively were individually T (ZE—FF :8,959,0007T) &
determined to be impaired. The individually impaired 263,0007T (=& —ZF : 265,000
receivables related to customers that were in financial JU) ZEWER T FE U Z= 45 K B
difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of BEEASHIRBE ZERMHE
the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, EMHREgECEFER MER
specific allowances for doubtful debts of $6,284,000 (2010: BREAEHETKREZERER
$8,955,000) and $263,000 (2010: $265,000) respectively were Mz—HGoBHit BEWERZ
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over 18 Bl % 3 BR 538 48 0 Bl 536,284,000
these balances. T (ZZE—Z% :8,9550007T) &

263,0007T (=% —F 4 : 265,000
7)) e AERBMUA BB ZEEHRIEE
EAE AR

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (c) HMARBEZERERREREE
impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that I R AE B R E R AERE 2 E
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be W R R R FE W R IE BR R 5 AT &L S
impaired are set out in note 22(b): AT EE22(b) -
The Group The Company
KEH KA
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B--f -T-%Ff -B--% Z-Z-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
FI Fr Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired I R B EE 132,186 115,945 71,738 41,879
ﬁ Less than 61 days past due BEDR6I B 37,788 19,637 7,852 5,206
ViR 61 to 90 days past due EHeI Z90H 1,733 2,830 259 29
| More than 90 days past due EHEI90A L £ 4,404 2,892 1,221 274
ﬁ 43,925 25,359 9,332 5,509
VAS
% 176,111 141,304 81,070 47,388
W,
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BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFE BT

(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not

impaired (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate

to a number of independent customers that have a good

track record with the Group. Based on past experience,

management believes that no impairment allowance is

necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

23

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11

(4&)

184 380 H SR (B 2 B LU IR B R
ZWEABM AR LR 2T FHRA -

BEYRREZERRRES
EBUEFER ZEEFPURE
SENEERBERY - REBE
ZEE
ARERE ERFEEEZLE
EXREH BEBRNERETE
HHE e AEEMIWER LSS

B EEERA

FEEMERR -

CBRERBETEEY

) RERREEEYWRE:

FEFH

22, AR R E B WX ()

() MABEZEUERRRERRE

53

The Group The Company
r5H b NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2--% =F-FF =%--F =-T-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr F FI F
Cash at bank and in hand RITEHERRRE 137,086 184,770 44,911 87,179

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE-_T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)

(b) BRBAGEFEKLXEBRERS

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: ZH R
2011 2010
—g——% —z-24
Note $°000 $°000
=3 Fr Fr
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 129,415 123,732
Adjustments for: AE
- Dividend income from unlisted equity - ¥rmkRERSZ
securities BREWA 4 (301) (422)
— Interest income -FIEKA 4 (861) (1,041)
- Write-off of intangible assets -BREERH 4 - 1,305
- Net (gain)/loss on disposals of plant and -HEREREBEREM
machinery and other fixed assets EEEE (KB /BRFE 4 (694) 380
— Finance costs -RMEMA 5(a) 5,695 5,634
— Amortisation of land lease premium -HELHFREGE 5(c) 63 70
— Depreciation -HE 5(c) 18,135 24,495
— Impairment loss on trade and other -ERERARHEGERTZ
receivables recognised AEEHBRED 5(c) 35 3,022
— Share of profits less losses of associates -EiEBEADRFREE 18(b) (484) (1,306)
~ Share of profits less losses of jointly -EhEEEARENHER
controlled entities 19 (72,594) (34,237)
— Net gain on disposals of subsidiaries - HEMNB AR KR FE 17(c) (1,808) -
— Gain on disposal of an associate HERE N AlE 18(c) (293) -
- Impairment losses on interest in associate -HEARREEREREE QT
and dividend receivable from an REZHBESE (&R),/
associate (reversed)/recognised 'R 18(d) (7,914) 7914
— Impairment loss of fixed assets -BEREEREFSE (BE)
(reversed)/recognised i 14(f) (5,498) 21,014
E — Impairment loss of other financial assets -HittemEERERR 4 2,173 -
ViR — Gain on disposals of land and buildings -~HETHREFRRENE
% and investment properties g 6 - (81,133)
2‘{ ~ Net valuation gains on investment properties —RENEEM[KEFE 14(a) (20,298) (20,915)
ﬁ — Foreign exchange gains -ER kG (1,993) (1,087)
A
‘/A\ Operating profit before changes in RBEREBA 2 L&
ﬁj working capital carried forward BRHEETE 42,778 47,425
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For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_Z——F=RA=+—RILFE (L&)

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) =~ 23. BERBESFEY M) . ..
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BBARFELEEBFABSRS
generated from operations: (continued) YR ()
2011 2010
e e
Note $°000 $000
V=3 Fr Fr
Operating profit before changes in RBEREBA 2 L8
working capital brought forward RNEELE 42,778 47,425
Changes in working capital: EEESRE !
— (Increase)/decrease in inventories -BE M wD (49,737) 57,282
~ (Increase)/decrease in trade debtors - EWERR: (52 n) /R D (259) 3,201
— (Increase)/decrease in bills receivable -EWEE (M) A (34,617) 6,332
— Increase in deposits, prepayments -BFH - BARREMER
and other debtors BRI (24,137) (6,387
- Increase in amounts due from —EREBE D R IEE M
related companies (1,164) (901)
— Increase in amounts due from jointly -EREEDRFELM
controlled entities (62) (324
— Increase in amount due from an associate - E A RFEEM (3,979) -
— Increase/(decrease) in trade creditors -EREZEM/ (HD) 20,390 (11,575)
— Increase/(decrease) in bills payable -EAEEEN/ (FD) 522 (14,867)
— Increase/(decrease) in accrued charges - ERAREMEMRR
and other creditors ®i,/ (Bd) 14,326 (6,234)
- Increase/(decrease) in amounts -ERBEARRELM, (HD)
due to related companies 1,456 (4,164)
~ (Decrease)/increase in amounts due -ENEEQRZREBHHD) /Bm
to jointly controlled entities (96) 94
— (Decrease)/increase in amount due -~ —REFE D) /180
to a shareholder (1,297) 343
— Increase/(decrease) in provision for -REABRBSEFEM/ (HD)
long service payments 3,064 (8,581)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations Ee%R (R /8RS (32,812) 61,644

ANDFEIXNEEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24, BNBRRREMEENSK

The Group The Company
K& ARH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% -F-%F —¥--% -F-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Trade creditors JE 4 BR X 105,058 88,695 57,990 40,753
Bills payable BARE 3,909 3,387 = 2,567
108,967 92,082 57,990 43,320
Accrued charges and other FEstERAREMEMNR
creditors 89,924 70,077 27,125 19,337
Amounts due to subsidiaries KB BFHIE - - 9,334 13,157
Amounts due to related FERBEERARNKE
companies 1,883 427 370 396
Amounts due to jointly ENEEARNE
controlled entities - 96 13 13
Amount due to a shareholder B —RERE
— Chan Family Investment — Chan Family Investment
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited 842 2,139 - -
Derivative financial instruments BEEREREHNIE
held as cash flow hedging ZITESMIA
instruments (note 29(c)(i)) (HE£29(c)(i) 3,865 - 3,865 -
205,481 164,821 98,697 76,223

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or

recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries, related companies, jointly
controlled entities and a shareholder are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

ANTEAIRESW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) = 24 BKRARHEMELSR )
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills REEHERERNRAKREMER
payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet RABUTHRED M ZENLRAKE
date: NHEE:

The Group The Company

r£E N

2011 2010 2011 2010
“E-——-f ZEZ-FTF CZB--§ C—Z-EF%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr FT Fr
Current AR EH 77,246 65,987 40,203 39,894
Less than 61 days past due BEDR6I B 27,975 21,078 16,107 3,167
61 to 90 days past due EH6I B ZE90H 650 3,488 4 I
More than 90 days past due BB LA L 3,096 1,529 1,676 248
Amounts past due HRLE 31,721 26,095 17,787 3,426
108,967 92,082 57,990 43,320

ANDFEIXNEEW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

25. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. The employer’s

contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted
ORSO Scheme for those employees who were eligible to
participate in the scheme. This scheme is operated in a way
similar to the MPF scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited employer’s
contributions or refunded to the employer. The amount of
employer’s contributions forfeited during the years ended 31 March

2011 and 2010 was immaterial.

The employees of certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC
are members of a state-sponsored retirement scheme organised
by the local government in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll, to the
retirement scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these retirement schemes is to make the

required contributions under the terms of the scheme.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFE KETH)
26. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

26 EEEBRIITNAER

() BEEREBERATNFBAEHS

The Group The Company
AEHE b NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F--% -T-%F =B--F =-T-%F
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
F Fr Fr Fr
Provision for Hong Kong rEE
Profits Tax for the year BERANEHERE 2,560 5,927 2,316 5,734
Provisional Profits Tax paid EREHFEHR (4,479) (5,729) (4,156) (3.414)
(1,919) 198 (1,840) 2,320
Provision of tax outside BEBBINEMSTE
Hong Kong ) 10,746 14,622 = 14,373
Net tax payable FEfIHiEF 8,827 14,820 (1,840) 16,693
Representing: R&:
Current tax recoverable AHEAHHIE (2,447) (2,311) (1,840) -
Current tax payable FE A HA % 18 11,274 17,131 = 16,693
8,827 14,820 (1,840) 16,693

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE WETH)

26. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 26 EERBERAITNAEH (&)
....... (Contin e | e A AT et ST T R T i SRS DO R
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) ERIBELHBH (BE) &
& :
(i) The Group () A&
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EEREEEBBERERN
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the EEFEH (BE) AfFE
movements during the year are as follows: AR DR AR FEZB W
T :
Depreciation
in excess of Undistributed
Revaluation ~ Revaluation the related Provision for profits of jointly

Future benefit ~of investment ~ oflandand ~ depreciation  Provision for longservice controlled Cash flow

of tax losses properties buildings allowances inventories payments entities hedge Total
w2 #ERE
[} 4 R i4RET  FERRE REE#E  AEDMA  RERE
ARHE NEER B WiE  REER BE ROEEA #h &it
§000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 §000

i 2 iz fz fz iz iz iz iz

Defered tox aisig fim: FEFAEEY

At | April 2009 H-EENERA-A om) 15,508 3818 117 (3757) (6.346) - - 7667
Exchange adjustments EFBE @ 18 - 0 ) ) - - m
ChargedI(credited) to TR/ (3A)

proft or loss 2697 1473 - (13 (19%) 1307 5657 - 2163
Credited o reserves TEBTA - - (319) - - - - - (316)
At 31 March 2010 Ho%-3E2821-8 (84) 17199 3502 (6,018) (5,709) (5,060) 5657 - 9,487
Ac | Aprl 2010 H-%-3EM5-A (64 17199 3500 6018) (5,709 (5,060) 5457 - 9487
Bxchange adustments Eig ®) 45 - (9 8 (18) - - 48
Charged(credited) to BEERIIR/ (M)

profit or loss 3 3694 - 30 178 (805) - - 4590
Credied o reseves HBITA - - - - - - - (596) (596)
At 31 March 2011 W-§--EZf=1-H - 11,158 3,50 (597) (4,459) (6,091) 5465 (596) 12,094

ANBEIXNEHW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALFE KETH)

26.

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued)

(i)

The Company

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

26 EERBRATNAEH (&

(b) EMRELEFRB/H (BE) &
& (&)

(i) A2 F

CEEERERBEANEL
Frigsi (&) /BENAR

BOMNAFESLBHOT -

Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation/

depreciation

in excess of
Revaluation  Revaluation the related
of investment of land and  depreciation Cash flow
properties buildings allowances hedge Total
BRAH
WEORE
RHE
BRAH
REME  IHEBT FEAHE RERE
Eff Eff BinE E2bal ChH
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tz Tz r 7 Tz
Deferred tax arising from: KE THEENELHEH
At | April 2009 RZZ2ENFMA-H 14,133 3818 1,140 - 19,091
Charged/(credited) to EBHEATIZ/ (GTA)
profit or loss 3319 - (970) - 2,349
Credited to reserves TR A - (316) - - (316)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-S£=A=1t-0 17452 3,502 170 = 21,124
At | April 2010 R=Z2-Z4MA-H 17,452 3,502 170 = 21,124
Charged/(credited) to EBHENGI%/ (T A)
profit or loss 5279 - (496) - 4,783
Credited to reserves EfRETA = = = (596) (596)
At 31 March 2011 R=B--£=A=+-A 2,13 3,502 (326) (596) 25311

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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26. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 26 EEEEBERMTINASH (&
....... {Continued) SRS TEE 200 ST DRI B (S BN T TR R D N
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERIBELHBH (BE) &

& (#)
(iii)  Reconciliation to the balance sheet (i) BEBEZLK
The Group The Company
r&EE AAF

2011 2010 2011 2010

2% C—ZT-%ZFf B CZZT-%F

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

F Fr Fr Fr

Net deferred tax assets HEEERRERN

recognised in the EEMBHERFE

balance sheet (17,974) (17,301) - -
Net deferred tax liabilities & EBBERBERN

recognised in the BLEREHRAGEEE

balance sheet 30,968 26,788 25,311 21,124

12,994 9,487 25,311 21,124

ANBEIXNEHW
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-_T——#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
26. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note I(r),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $20,294,000 (2010: $26,800,000)
attributable to certain subsidiaries as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction of the entities.
Tax losses amounting to $5,780,000 (2010: $4,475,000) do
not expire under the relevant current tax legislation, while
the remaining tax losses amounting to $14,514,000 (2010:
$22,325,000) incurred by the PRC subsidiaries will expire in

five years after they are incurred as follows:

26 EERBRATNAEH (&

() RERWELEFREHREE :

BEMEI() AEBMERRE
F Kt BB 2 7 5 %20,294,0007T (=
T —ZF ! 26,800,0007T) #Y ] K
HEEEREENELRESHE
B HREHBEER HERE
EEmMS  BAHEBAZEENU
K8 R R FERBURF 2 AT RE1ER
K- RIBBBERITHBEEM B
% B 18 4 ££5,780,000T (=& —
T 1 4,475,0007T) T EEM o ™
FAMHPEMERAREENS
K EEE1£14,514,000T (=& —
T 1 22,325,00000) S REEH
BRFRER:

2011 2010
—®--% —T-TF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Expiring in December: RIE=AlEi -

2010 i - 534
2011 —E-—F - 336
2012 —E—-=F - 1,622
2013 —E-=F - 123
2014 —E—-UF 2,490 16,756
2015 —E-IF 2,333 2,954
2016 —E-REF 9,691 -
14,514 22,325

Do not expire under ERITREEAT REEEH
current tax legislation 5,780 4,475
20,294 26,800

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
27. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE PAYMENTS

27, REBRBEER

ANERIREET

132

The Group The Company
&M A7

2011 2010 2011 2010

g--5 -B-BF -%--F -B-%F

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr Fr Fr Fr

At the beginning of the year REL 24,754 33,335 2,689 4,459

Exchange adjustments ERAE 874 83 - -

Add: Additional provision made e FEREEEM 4,975 1,613 - -
Less: Payments made during " FRTR

the year (1,327) (5,656) - -

Less: Reversal of provision B EERE (1,458) (4,621) (639) (1,770)

At the end of the year REHR 27,818 24,754 2,050 2,689

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group and the
Company are obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group and the
Company. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the retirement schemes of the Group and the
Company that are attributable to contributions made by the Group
and the Company. The Group and the Company do not set aside

any assets to fund the above remaining obligations.

Under the PRC Labour Contract Law, the Group is obliged to
make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service. The Group does

not set aside any assets to fund the above remaining obligations.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=1—ALEE BT

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS . .= 28 BE WERRE ...
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) BEZERMIMDZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances AEBEGEERSHERIBMDZH
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set VEBRESR CHREANGEE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details wmEBR o AD TS E B A K
of the changes in the Company’s individual components of HOREIRFRZEEEEW
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set T
out below:
Land and
Capital Investment buildings
Share Share redemption revaluation revaluation ~ Hedging  Retained
Note capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
Rx RE tHREF

iG] Ba  RHEE RERE EfEGE EEEE HHERE KRB ait
$000 000 $000  $000 SO0 SO0 §000  $000
7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 7z 123 7z

Balance at | April 2009 R-SZAEME-RAZEH 105,184 102,753 41 2 2030 355060 583,829

Changes in equity for the year: FEEREET:

Profit for the year KEEER 10 - - - - - - 106205 106,205
Other comprehensive income Ah2EYE - - - 101 - - - 101
Total comprehensive income REELEYELR

for the year - - - 101 - - 106205 106,306
Dividends approved in respect of REERHERNL-EE

the previous year MRS 28(b)(ii) - - - - - - (18933)  (18933)
Disposal of investment properties HENGERALHRES

previously transferred from ZRENE

land and buildings - - - - (3,820) - 3820 -
Reversal of deferred tax on disposal HENGERRLIHRET

of investment properties LRENFHREL

previously transferred from EEAEHARD

land and buildings 26(b) i) - - - - 316 - - 316
Dividends declared in respect of FEERERKE

the current year 28(b)(i) - - - - - - (2,104) (2,104)

Balance at 31 March 2010 and R-B-Z5=R=1-BR

I April 2010 “E-3EMA-H2EH 105,184 102,753 4l 143 16805 - M08 669414
Changes in equity for the year: FEEREST: E
Profit for the year AEERA 0 = = - s = - w7 98T N
Other comprehensive income Ab2ENE - - - (365) - (01 -3 L
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENELE %
for the year - - - (365) - (3016) 98739 95,358 1{
Dividends approved in respect of TEEAHEBRL-FE ﬁ
the previous year MRS 28(b)(i) - - - - - - (1) (1242 m
Dividends declared in respect of FEEDERRE I\
the current year 28(b)(i) - - - - - - (4207) (4207) A
|
Balance at 31 March 2011 R=B--F=B=t-H
A 105,184 102,753 48 (m) 16,805 (3016) 525,958 747943
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

VE-F——F= A=+ —HILEE LUETH)

28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28.

(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

(b) BB

BAE - RERRE (&

(i) BEREREFEALE

attributable to the year ERE
2011 2010
—B——fF —E-BF
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Interim dividend declared EEIRRZAHHRE
and paid of $0.02 BREBERKR.02TT
(2010: $0.01) per (ZE—-FF 10017T)
ordinary share 4,207 2,104
Final dividend proposed REEBRBEBRERERE
after the balance BREBERKRO.I0T
sheet date of $0.10 —E-ZHF :10067T)
(2010: $0.06) per
ordinary share 21,037 12,622
25,244 14,726

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet

date.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid

REFRRZRIRBEHORBRE E R
EHEEHRARAEE -

(i) BNERAREFEABR
L-HBFE  ERFFE

during the year BERSIHIRE
2011 2010
—2——F =—T-%%F
$°000 $000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of BRE-—BEBEE IR
the previous financial year, REEZERIHRE
approved and paid during R EBREER0.067T
the year of $0.06 (2010: $0.09) (ZZ—ZF%F :10.097)
per ordinary share 12,622 18,933

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 —F=A=t+—RLLFE (L&)
28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

ANNUAL REPORT

h@7 7

28. RA& - RERKE (&)

(c) Authorised and issued share capital (c) ZERBEITRA
2011 2010
g% —g-%%
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
’000 $°000 ’000 $000
FE Fr FER Fr
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of $0.50 each FREESITZEBR 400,000 200,000 400,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ERAKREBELTER:
fully paid:
At the beginning and the end RENRFHK
of the year 210,369 105,184 210,369 105,184

(d)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note |(u).

Investment revaluation reserve
The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale equity securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in notes | (f) and (k).

The investment revaluation reserve is not available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company.

EBEREAEREVERAESIRNR
B YEEREAAARRAELER
RER-FNLAZERRE - TEE
BREADAGBNEELHZRERS
FER

d) RENAHERAZR
() REEERKLEERFE
R A7 5 1B & IR 7S B B & 48 1Y
A B2 EEEBE(ATK
5I) 55 48B1R & SE49HIR FT &
Eo

(i) ELZFE
EXREEFEERETEN
MEBZHBREMEEZ
FIEERZELE - ZEEDR
BRI E 2 &5 BUR
B o

KEELREE
RESMHHFECSENEER
BEUHEEREZRS LT
BENRTFEEH > WRIE
HARMEFIOR KB 5K
R o

(iii)

REEMRHEBEIATEDIKT
RRATREFEA ©
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28. RA& - EERKRE (&)

d) BENMEERAZE(HE)
(iv) LtHREFEEZGHRE

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Land and buildings revaluation reserve

ANERIREET
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The land and buildings revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies adopted for land and buildings set out in note

I (h) (i)

The land and buildings revaluation reserve is not

available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

ARARORITHREFTE
LS LRI E G ATER
AWESTEER (MEE1(h) i)
BRIBE LS o

THREF EGREL TR
AHDIRTADBDRERFE

Company. A e

(v)  Hedging reserve v) HHEE
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion HhRECSEARRESR
of the cumulative net change in the fair value of E¥PHNEIF TR 2 BUE
hedging instruments used in cash flow hedges pending THWAEBERFEE -
subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in MEZREREEPESHE
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash BREAWE RS RE IR
flow hedges in note I(g). BERMEI(BEESRESY

HENEFBUR o

(vi) Other reserve (vi) EftEE
Other reserve represents a statutory reserve fund. HEEAEIEREES -
According to the articles of association of the REASERTEZHEA

subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit,
as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations applicable to enterprises with
foreign investment, to the statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of a dividend.

RAZEABERME - HEBELD
BEABBHRBERRINE
TEIPESTHRAIREKEL
EBEZA&RNZZELI%RE X
ERHEES  EEHEHE
EITMERZ50%H L o
MZFEEREFERSERES
R EAMEDL °

(e) Distributability of reserves (e) AT IKRHE
At 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves available R-ZE-——HF=ZA=Z+—8"

for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company,

as calculated under the provisions of section 79B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $525,958,000 (2010:
$444,048,000). After the balance sheet date the directors
proposed a final dividend of $0.10 (2010: $0.06) per share,
amounting to $21,037,000 (2010: $12,622,000). This dividend

has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet

date.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

RIBEE B (DKM E7981%
FECAQAFTAHSIIKFAAD
TAREEEANGELSES
525,958,000T (=& —Z F :
444,048,0007T) - R&EE B % -
EERRRBARERESROIO
T(ZE—FF :0061) ' &
521,037,000t (=ZE—F F :
12,622,0005T) ° ZBREREEH
HARERBEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 5 R 3% MY &
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28. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

®

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
loans and borrowings) plus unaccrued proposed dividends less
cash and cash equivalents (which excluded pledged deposits).
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity, less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the current financial year, the Group’s strategy,
which was unchanged from the previous financial year, was
to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at a reasonable
level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt

financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

As at 3| March 2011 and 2010, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries have outstanding interest bearing loans and

borrowings.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject

to externally imposed capital requirements.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk from its equity investment in other
entities. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
at bank, trade and other receivables, dividends and loans
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing

basis.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group only places deposits
with major financial institutions which management believe

are of high credit rating.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount and for all new customers. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. These receivables are due between 30 to
120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does

not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of dividends and loans receivable, the Group only
invests and lends to those with creditworthiness. The Group
closely monitors the repayment schedules of dividends and

loans receivable in order to minimise the risk of default.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

@

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group
has significant exposure to individual customers. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 15.9% (2010: 4.6%) and 23.4% (2010: 41.9%)
of the total trade debtors was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively within

the manufacturing and sale of garments business segment.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet
after deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Company as set out in note
31, the Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial

guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed in note 31.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other

receivables are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and

the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and

derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual

undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments

computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date

the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

The Group

29. iIBREAKBEERATEE (&)
(b) REELRK (&)
TRFVNEAEERADTNIEST
EeRBERITESHEBERS
AN ERENER  HATRE
RENLRTBHNESTEE (B
FERENFZEFEZFE S
BEE  ARFEEAERFEG
E)RAEERARATHEREEREX

THH -
AKE
2011 2010
S g-g4
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow
repayable within |

year or on demand

RHLAR-FR

cash outflow

Balance sheet

carrying amount

repayable within |

year or on demand

AHLAR-FR

Balance sheet

carrying amount

FREREEL BESER  JREREEZ BESER

AFRHRER ZEEE ARRNRERE ZHREE

$000 $°000 $000 $000

7 Fr 77 7

Trade creditors RARR 105,058 105,058 88,695 88,695

Bills payable EEE 3,909 3,909 3,387 3387

Accrued charges and other creditors B BRAREMENR 89,924 89,924 70,077 70,077

Amounts due to related companies ERBELRFRE 1,883 1,883 27 27

Amounts due to jointly controlled entities JEFfAE A FFE - - 9 9

Amount due to a shareholder B -REHE 842 842 2,139 2,139
Derivative financial instruments heldas ~ HEfEREREHAIA

cash flow hedging instruments ZITEERIA 3,894 3,865 - -

205,510 205,481 164,821 164,821
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
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. BBRABREERAFEEAE)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REELRK (&)
The Company b /N |
2011 2010
8- “2-2f%
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted

cash outflow
repayable within
| year or on demand

RHLAR-FR

cash outflow

Balance sheet repayable within Balance sheet

carrying amount | year or on demand

AHLAR-FR

carrying amount

AREREEZ BERER  REREEZ BEEER

AFRMR LR ZBEE RARHRESR ZEEE

$000 $000 $000 $000

i i i I

Trade creditors BT R 57,990 57,990 40,753 40,753

Bills payable AES - - 2,567 2,567

Accrued charges and other creditors EERRHMERT 27,125 27,125 19,337 19,337

Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARDRE 9,334 9,334 13,157 13,157

Amounts due to related companies EREELAN 370 370 3% 3%

Amounts due to jointly controlled entities FEff 5% A FHIE 13 13 3 13
Derivative financial instruments held as ~ HEEEEFEUWHIA

cash flow hedging instruments ZITEERIA 3,894 3,865 - -

98,726 98,697 76203 76203

(c) Currency risk (c) E¥ERK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash balances that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily Euros, United States dollars (“USD”), Pounds
Sterling, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).

As the HKD is pegged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate.
However, management acknowledges that the Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates for other

currencies.

AEESRNEEAREERE
BREEBSRNEE R LI
IEHENEBERGMEENE
WERR  BNBRANRREAER -
SIHLERBNERITERR
XU RE - BIRARE -

HREBTEETEHN  NEEE
HER BAEXIFEEEKX
RE - AT BEEERA AE
EEHHEMESEZZFHER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Forecast transactions

At any point in time the Group aims to effectively hedge
its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales, excluding those transactions
denominated in USD which are, or are expected to be,
entered into by operations with a functional currency of
HKD. Such transactions are currently not hedged under
the Group’s foreign currency risk management strategy
as the Group currently considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be

insignificant.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its currency risk and classifies these as cash flow hedges.
All of the forward exchange contracts have maturities
of less than one year after the balance sheet date. At 31
March 2011, the Group and the Company had forward
exchange contracts hedging forecast transactions with a
net fair value of $3,865,000 (2010: $Nil) and $3,865,000
(2010: $Nil) respectively, recognised as derivative

financial instruments (see note 24).

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-F——F=A=T—ALLTE LUETH)
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are

shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using spot rate
at the year end date.

ANNUAL REPORT
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29. MIBEABEERAFEEE)

(©)

LRk (&)
(i) EZEEERE

TRAVNARERAQ TR
REAMAZ2EBER
ZEEWRABRDEMSER
ZHEBXZHCRIBEED
BENURDTHEE LS
ZEWITEMEL - AER
BAERsEBEDREREHZ
HERRERBEEZS]
2R e

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ESLEACS i)
2011 2010
g% “3-%5
United Hong United Hong
Pounds  States Kong  Pounds  States Kong
Sterling  Dollars  Euros Renminbi  Dollars  Sterling ~ Dollars Euros  Renminbi ~ Dollars
R  %n BE ARR Bx  #F X BE AR #Exn
$000  $°000  $000  $000  $000 $000  $000  $000 $000 $000
fr_fr_ fr _Ffrx_ Ffrx fx  Fx_fx fx  Fx
The Group 550
Trade and other receivables FEWER 3R M3 8 129444 14834 2,634 3 8 8060 767 30,082 83
Cash and cash equivalents  BERBEEEEY 932 41,968 94 - 1895 10947 5203 828 - 3780
Trade and other payables TR R E A (432) (53,462) (5388)  (399) - (1) (9 (24 (8) -
Amounts due to related  EIBEATFHE
companies - (13) - - - - - - - -
Net exposure arising RECEIEER
from recognised assets BENERRE
and liabilities k] 508 117,937 9540 2,236 1,895 10717 9,151 6,191 30024 3813
The Company N
Trade and other receivables FEUER (R M3 8 79346 5954 3 = T #1366 50 -
Cash and cash equivalents  EERBSZEN 932 1799 9% - - 10947 29960 828 - -
Trade and other payables TR R L MEMH @31y (1399 (@67 (15 N T ) N 6} (20) s
Amounts due froml(to)  FEW/ (Ef) EEAT
group companies P 13,854 (1,406) - (2,408) - (13303)  (3579) - (698) -
Amounts due to related EREEARE
companies - (13) - - - - - - - -
Net exposure arising RECRAEER
from recognised assets  EENERALE
and liabilities EH 14363 68,522 3281  (2,386) - (2580) 45,020 1,436 (668) =
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29. MKEKREER ATFEEE)

(c) Currency risk (continued) (c) E¥EK (&)
(iii)  Sensitivity analysis (iii) BREE ZHT
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRIIREAEB 2R BR
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) F(REREEFN BREE
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which BEXZSEAESE (K
the Group has significant exposure at the balance EEEMEETHRIERR
sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other BYMELEZNREHER
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is REMEARSHTE o Rt
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and the msE AEBRBEBTTES
USD would be materially unaffected by any changes in T HEERTERETR
movement in value of the USD against other currencies. HittE¥ o BER 2 E M5

ZHEAEE -

The Group
LS 3L
2011 2010
g% —3-%%

Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit  Increase/(decrease) Effect on profit

in foreign after tax and in foreign after tax and

exchange rates retained profits exchange rates retained profits

HEHAZRRR HERZETR

Ext#/(TH) REEN<¥E EZL#/(TH)  REEN<%E

% $°000 % $000

B7lt r ARl r

Pounds Sterling R 5% 21 5% 447

(5)% (2l (5)% (447)

Euros BE 5% 398 5% 258

(5)% (398) (5)% (258)

153 Renminbi AR# 8% 149 8% 2363

ViR (8)% (149) (8)% (2,363)

i‘{ Hong Kong Dollars B 8% 114 8% 29

ﬁ (8)% (114) (8)% (296)
/A\
=|
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(c) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) ~ Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the

balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to currency risk at the balance sheet
date, including inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2010.

(d) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity

securities (see note 20).

The Group’s listed investments are mainly listed on The
Stock Exchange of Singapore. The listed investments in the
available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored regularly for

performance against expectations.

The Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term
strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least
bi-annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s long

term strategic plans.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the balance sheet date. It is assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change
in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, that none of the
Group’s listed available-for-sale investments would be considered
impaired as a result of the decrease in the relevant stock market
index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29. MBEARERER A VEEE)
e ALUESHcontinded)iTerATE. Wi oo Wl b Mg OIS TR i RS D S R
(d) Equity price risk (continued) (d) BRERKE)
At 31 March 2011, it is estimated that an increase/decrease of R-—_E-——F=H=+—-8" '8&
10% (2010: 10%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed HEMESEEREIE  MBER
investments), with all other variables held constant, would Emig (EHRE) BEE M R
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax (and DI0% (ZF—FF 1 10%) » &5t
retained profits) and other components of consolidated equity BN RO AREBEN R EE
as follows: M(RREBER) REFEEREM
HAREDUET
The Group
x50
2011 2010
8% “3-35
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
profit after other profit after other
tax and components tax and components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
HBRBLENR Hifgs HBRREENR HHMES
REEN2YE i REEA 2 Baege
% 000 $°000 % $000 $000
Aol i 23 Antt 23 24
Change in Straits BREFEE
Times Index: £9:
Increase 1 10% - 506 10% - ol
Decrease H (10)% - (506) (10)% - (491)

HREINET  BRETEHIH
EERREB 2B OCREERE
£ YWERAREHHELEEFME
BzEMIA MEAEIASEAEE
REFHARZRERR HAEH
ZBEBREZFRREEN) RGEEE
BNHEMED S EER ZAEEE -
TERRAEERERE 2N FEES

REEEEMEE  HUBHRET
2 AEENTHEELTRESS
AEFERREHRDMERBIEGRER
B ZEINBE-_Z-ZFMHREZ
BEEET -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(e) Fair values

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value

measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level | (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices

in active markets for similar financial instruments,
or using valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on

observable market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using

valuation techniques in which any significant input

is not based on observable market data
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HRAFEEIRYEFMT A
TRARAFEEGENS
BIARMBEELAER
WEREE @ RBE B BER
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BINERMT ¢
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(RERE) ERTE
A FEE
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BOEERIERFE
o EE

- A (BERRD
FEEH AIEE & T
TEET SRS RIS
R E R B R
AV EE

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED

FEFH

ADFEIXNEEW

147



ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T——F=A=+—ALFE LOBTH)
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29. MKEKREER ATFEEE)

(e) Fair values (continued) (e) DTEEE)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) () BARAFEEIERYEHTA
(#&
The Group and the Company
rEERELNT
2011 2010
—2——F —2-ZF§
Level | Level 2 Level | Level 2
&AN & 52 AN & 502
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets &
Listed available-for-sale equity AHHE LT REERS
securities 5,056 - 4910 -
Liabilities &f
Derivative financial instruments  FAEERSREHHIA
held as cash flow hedging ZiTEEMIA
instruments - 3,865 - -
During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, there R-E——EN_E-FE
were no significant transfers between instruments in Z=A=+—BULHEEER I
Level | and Level 2. RETEBT BERAIEY

Mz EERER -

(i) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (ii) WIENFEEFRZ ST
value Az R FiEHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s REEBERAABR-E——
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost ER_E-FTF=/=+—
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 B LR AN 5 45 18 85 A AN B BR
March 2011 and 2010. MERTAEANFEEL

BERE=R-

ANTEAIRESW
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(f) Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and

assumptions used in estimating fair values of financial

instruments.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for transaction

costs.

Derivatives
Forward exchange contracts are by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the current

spot rate.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate is a market related

rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information

can be made.

ANNUAL REPORT

h@7 7

29. MBEABEERAFEEE)
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AT EEZ
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AFRENEES ERER -
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(i)

EF
AFEERGEERZTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—F——F=A=t—ALFE LETH)

20\ COMMITMENTSI | 50 ¥ 0 SN o b hn e (30 R S M T e W Py )
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2011 not @ RZIE——F=HA=+-—-H8 1}
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RIEMBERRAELEE 2 ERE
T
The Group The Company
S 5 NG|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% -T-TF -3--F -T-FF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
The Group’s capital FEBERRE:
commitments:
Contracted for SHES) 3,505 19 19 19
The Group’s share of the AEBEEENT
capital commitments of HEARRE
jointly controlled entities:
Contracted for EHES] 1,431 10,031 - -
4,936 10,050 19 19
(b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease payments by R=ZE——F=A=+—HB R
in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating ERAMBRNEEHERERAEE
leases are payable as follows: NHREYERSEFRELAZN
T:
The Group
rER
2011 2010
—®¥——% C—E-TF
$°000 $°000
E Fr Fr
i
a9l Within | year —FR 3,648 3,512
% After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 2,338 1,467
ﬁ After 2 years but within 5 years —F#EREFR 3,406 2,303
B More than 5 years TEUE 701 1,404
N
5| 10,093 8,686
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 5 R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

(b) At 31 March 2011, the total future minimum lease payments
in respect of properties under non-cancellable operating

leases are payable as follows: (continued)

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance leases and land

held under operating leases are described in note 14.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect
of a number of properties held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease upon expiry when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it is probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the balance
sheet date under the guarantees issued is the total amount of
facilities drawn down by the subsidiaries at the balance sheet date

amounted to $3,909,000 (2010: $820,000).

The guarantees were issued by the Company at nil consideration.
The transactions were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to
measure reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly, the
guarantees have not been accounted for as financial liabilities and

measured at fair value.

30.
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E-EHESNYFBERE
He -

CHRBEERERE

B2 HNMEER

REER KAFERETEZENES
NEERFZRITRERRITRMHE
RO BETIAATRHBRRIETME
REARRATREHFR - RA AR
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—Z4F 1 820,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 %5 ¥ 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-T——F=A=+—BILFE WETH)
32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BB AL CE ARG

BREAMHERREMBEHTRBEZR
PREGHN REBITIUTEKRE
BMALRS:

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following

material related party transactions:

(a) YGM Trading Limited and its subsidiaries (a) YGMEZERARREKE AR

(“YGMT Group”) (TYGMTE&E )
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=F
Note $’000 $°000
HraE Fr Fr
Purchases of garment products BERNXER (ii) 1,659 2,148
Sales of garment products HEMKER (ii) 33,137 29,062
Rental income received and 2R FE R ) 3
receivable HElA (ii) 3,851 3,854
Management fee received and ERREREREE
receivable (iii) 804 804
Building management fee received 2R ERETF
and receivable EEE (i) 288 288
Commission income received and EWRERBE
receivable A 19 428
Notes: Miat -
(i) Certain directors of the Company are collectively the () ARAFAETESSRABAYGMTE

controlling shareholders of both YGMT Group and the Group. BRAEBEZIEREE-

(i)  As certain directors and their associates are collectively the (i) BETEBERFE2BHBZALE

BAYGMTREE R NE B ZZKR
BRR(EEREBHERIME
RRAGES EmER) » Hit
HERBERKER - HElWA

controlling shareholders (as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited) of YGMT Group and the Group, the sales and

purchases of garment products, the rental income and building

management fees constitute connected transactions for the FEFEEBERAEE B
Group under the Listing Rules. ERE o
(iii) The management fees were charged for administrative, business (i) EEBWAERBHITHRIE ¥

strategy, personnel, legal and company secretarial work,

BERE - AB ZERAANE
T SHEEERBER -

accounting and management services provided.

ANERIREET

152 YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED



ANNUAL REPORT 10/11 F£E £
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7% 3 3% MY &
For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BEZT——F=A=1T—HLLFE &)
32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. HEABEALTZEAR S (&)
....... (cOnLIDUCC lanS Sl W Daes L .o o Ko 8 B C ol Toubil B L ST K i N S
(b) Other related parties (b) HBEAL
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-=fF
Note $°000 $°000
Hra FT Fr
Wouxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd. EEREFHBEER AT ()
Purchases of raw materials BERER - 7,805
Sales of raw materials SHERERM R - 3
Wouxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd. BERIBEBEHBERAE ()
Purchases of raw materials BEEMA 25,864 -
Subcotracting fee paid 2N EMIEAR 65 -
Allied Textiles Limited FEEGSERAT (i)
Purchases of raw materials BEREMA 400 208
Chanson Asia Limited REFTENERAT (ii)
Rental income received and EUREERMERS
receivable 'ON 103 46
Building management fee received EWRERETFEERE
and receivable 7 3
Chanson Limited RHFEZERAT (ii)
Rental income received and EUREERMERS
receivable A - 59
Building management fee received ERRERETFEEE
and receivable - 4
WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. (ii)
Consultancy fee paid and payable ENRENERE 960 960 §03
L
Guangzhou Top Yield N B M S AR |
Garment Limited BRAFA (iii) K
Purchases of raw materials BERERMA 1,310 - ﬁ
B
73
7l

YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-T——4#=A=+—AILER (LUETH)

32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) Other related parties (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Wuxi Changxin Textile Co., Ltd., Wuxi YGM Textile Co., Ltd.
and Allied Textiles Limited are wholly owned subsidiaries of
Wuxi No. | Cotton Investment Co., Ltd., a jointly controlled

entity of the Group.

(i) Certain directors of the Company are collectively the
controlling shareholders of Chanson Asia Limited, Chanson
Limited, WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd. and the Group.

32 HEEBEALTZERRS (#)

() EHFRFIGEBERLF  EHR
TIRER A AR AR KR
GEBERLDAVALTEERZE
ENAEE-RREARQT
ZEEBEEMBAF -

(i) XARETESHRBARFEZ
MNERLR RHFEZERD
F) » WTCO07 Holdings Pte Ltd.}&

REBZEZERRRE
(i) Guangzhou Top Yield Garment Limited is an associate of the (i) BMNEBRKERLAB/AE
Group. BzHBE QT -

(c) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related

(© B (BR)BEAT  S8A

companies, jointly controlled entities and an associate: AIRBE AT FE
2011 2010
= —E-%F
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Amount due from YGMT Group EURYGMTE B & 4,184 3,020
Amount due to YGMT Group ENYGMTR B FIE (1,513) (33)
Amount due to WTCO07 Holdings FE{FWTCO7 Holdings Pte Ltd.
Pte Ltd. MIE (370) (394)
Amount due from Allied Textiles WG BERA R
Limited FRIE 1,413 1,351
Amount due to Wuxi Yangtzekiang EMAESEFIBR
Textile Co., Ltd HEMARD T RIE - (96)
Amount due from Guangzhou Top Yield FEWEMNREMEXER DA
Garment Limited MIE 3,979 -

ANTEAIRESW
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5 %5 7% B A

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RE—2——F=A=t—AILEE LUETH)

The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the

preparation of the financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables
If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
assets. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of trade and other
receivables is the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return of similar assets. The
Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable

amount.

(b) Write-down of inventories
The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and,
management experience and judgment. Based on this review,
a write-down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ preferences,
actual saleability of goods may be different from estimations
and profit or loss in future accounting periods could be

affected by differences in these estimations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10/11 FEFH

BF % R 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRE—2——F=A=+—AILEE LUETH)
33. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

()

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets — future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
I(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates

are changed.

Valuation of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties requires
management’s input in respect of various assumptions
and factors relevant to the valuation. The Group engages
independent professional qualified valuers to conduct an
annual revaluation of the Group’s investment properties
based on assumptions agreed between the Group and the

valuers prior to adoption.

Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 27, the Group makes provision for
lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
The payments due are dependent on future events and recent
payment experience may not be indicative of future payments.
Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit

or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3 3% MY &

For the year ended 31 March 201 | (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T——F=A=t+—RHLLFE LET)
34. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, Interpretations and one new
standard and which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2011 and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements. These include the following which may be relevant to

ANNUAL REPORT 10/11

3. RBZ=-ZE——F=A=1+—H
LEECHEMGENRERNIE
R HEARBREUEEBRAT
EEAMBRRER A FHGS
MABCHEMETBT 28R &
HER  BRAZE-——F=A=1—
B b F B M ARAEW - R KRB RR
MRS BEHRER - HPERARAE

the Group: EMNERERNT :
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on kRS
or after REBER
Revised BEEER Related party disclosures BEALHE | January 2011 —2--f-f-H
HKAS 24 F245 0 BT
HKFRS 9 BERMBHREER  Financial instruments #2@IA | January 2013 “Z-=Zf-A-H
E9%:
Improvements to = —Z—ZEFEHK IJuy20100r =Z—ZFtA—-AHF
HKFRSs 2010 REER 2 E | January 2011 —Z-—-%-fA-H
Amendments to B BBEER  Income taxes FriEH | January 2012 —E-_£-fA-H

HKAS 12 F128%

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position, except for the amendments to
HKAS 12, Income taxes. However, the Group has not yet completed
its assessment of the impact of this new accounting policy on the
financial statements. The amendments to HKAS 12 will be adopted

in the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2013.

AEBEREFLFME EREETHE - 2
FEARRERBRARADEASRE
THEE -BEENAL  AEER
ARMUERBRHAEENELESE
RUBRATEBHERLE  HR
BRI BETERE 12RAEH R
BAEEEMARTERZENE T BERY
MBRERNOZENTML - KRBTSR
S ENENREEAR - —=

ZA=T-RFEERNMBHRE -
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GROUP PROPERTIES
'y PR

Details of the major properties of the Group are as follows: AEFBFTEYEERFINNOT :
Location 8 Existing use Jiife3 Term of lease HEFH

Major properties held for investment

BEREABZEENE

The whole building B8 Commercial [5ES Medium-term FEBL
22 - 24 Tai Yau Street NEEH B

San Po Kong, Kowloon KB - 2485

Hong Kong 2iE

Units 10C3, 10D and I0EI on level 10 REARLNE Commercial [ES Medium-term FEEL
Junyao International Plaza LETHER

No. 789 Zhaojiabang Road ERBRI89

Xuhui District, Shanghai City YVREARES

The People’s Republic of China EJT10C3, 10DK I0EI

Unit 1508 on level 15 hEARLANE Commercial [5ES Medium-term REEL
Fudan Science Park Tower (Block I1) LEmRBE

No. 11 Guotai Road BRI

Yangpu District, Shanghai City EERRERE

The People’s Republic of China (1148) E 1508

ANFERIREET
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
Erﬁdﬁ%Kong dollars)
(&L ET)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“Z2tE ZEZENFE ZCZEENF CZE-2F CZEB--Ff
$°000 $000 $000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr F Fr Fr
Results ES
Turnover HER 1,725,435 1,540,276 1,625,529 1,310,042 1,416,250
Profit from operations EEEF 114,526 68,551 48,669 20,703 26,221
Finance costs ME KA (19,099) (10,803) (9,238) (5,634) (5,695)
Share of profits less losses of ELEE A RRRREE
associates (343) 1,523 1,151 1,306 484
Share of profits less losses of Biregnmafise
jointly controlled entities 14,121 76,987 38,193 34,237 72,594
Net (loss)/gain on disposals of HENB AR
subsidiaries (B8) /hE28 (9,296) - - - 1,808
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBRE N AW - - 4,684 - 293
Impairment losses on interest in BeEnRERRER
associate and dividend BeErRAREZRESE
receivable from associate (BR) /#BE
(recognised)/reversed - (4,000 - (7,914) 1,914
Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERERE
(recognised)/reversed ®’:A) /BE - - - (21,014) 5,498
Gain on disposals of land HETHREFR
and buildings REMFE NG
and investment properties - - - 81,133 -
Net valuation gains/(losses) on REMEME
investment properties Wi/ (BE) 38 10,231 18,866 (7,845) 20,915 20,298
Profit before taxation BRBE AT R 110,140 151,124 75614 123,732 129,415
Income tax FREH (13,670) (9,174) (3,447) (20,086) (17,771)
Profit for the year REERF 96,470 141,950 72,167 103,646 111,644 &
Attributable to: EESR: L
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AIREFHE A 96,706 142,240 71,877 103,479 ITRIN n
Non-controlling interests FERRR#ESR (236) (290) 290 167 533 Xg
Profit for the year rEERF 96,470 141,950 72,167 103,646 111,644 AR
/A\
Per share basis NEBRTE 2
Basic and diluted earnings per share BREARBERA HK$0.46 HK$0.68 HK$0.34 HK$0.49 HK$0.53
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FEFRH

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(KX BT Er)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“ET+E ZEENF CZEENE CZ2-%ZF CZ—B—-f%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Fixed assets EEEE 240,239 262,849 249,137 189,987 208,102
Construction in progress REIR 42 291 609 - -
Intangible assets BREE 2,874 2,874 2,874 1,569 1,569
Goodwill HE - - - - -
Interests in associates BeNAER 14,671 12,110 6,586 - 203
Interests in jointly controlled entities &% 2 A& 314,042 428,655 477,224 513,133 610,400
Prepayment for fixed assets EEERAR - - - - 3,273
Other financial assets HittemEE 4,586 1,453 5,986 5,820 7,854
Dividend receivable from a jointly EREERAARE
controlled entity - - 28,678 - -
Deferred tax assets BIEFEHEE - 1,204 7,765 17,301 17,974
Net current assets RBEEFH 134,683 171,042 154,527 293,484 299,246
Total assets less current liabilities LBEAERRDEE 711,137 880,478 933,386 1,021,294 1,148,621
Non-current liabilities F¥RBEE (31,660) (41,528) (48,767 (51,542) (58,786)
Net assets EEFE 679,477 838,950 884,619 969,752 1,089,835
Share capital R 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184 105,184
Reserves i 573,547 732,996 778,375 863,341 982,974
Total equity attributable to equity FERBRARD B R
shareholders of the Company BEEAEZARE 678,731 838,180 883,559 968,525 1,088,158
Non-controlling interests FERBRER 746 770 1,060 1,227 1,677
Total equity R ALE 679,477 838,950 884,619 969,752 1,089,835
YANGTZEKIANG GARMENT LIMITED
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